
 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 

GUARDIANSHIP OF THE PERSON 

AND ESTATE OF KATHLEEN JUNE 

JONES, AN ADULT PROTECTED 

PERSON. 

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES, 

 

   Appellant, 

 vs. 

 

ROBYN FRIEDMAN; AND DONNA 

SIMMONS,  

Respondents. 

 

Case No. 81799 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appeal from the Eighth Judicial 

District Court, the Honorable Linda 

Marquis Presiding  

 

 

 

RESPONDENTS’ APPENDIX, VOLUME 11 

(Nos. 1422–1550) 

 

 

John P. Michaelson, Esq. 

Nevada Bar No. 7822 

MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD. 

2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 160 

Henderson, Nevada 89052 

Telephone: (702) 731-2333 

Facsimile: (702) 731-2337 

john@Michaelsonlaw.com 

 

Micah S. Echols, Esq. 

Nevada Bar No. 8437 

CLAGGETT & SYKES LAW FIRM 

4101 Meadows Lane, Suite 100 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89107 

Telephone: (702) 655-2346 

Facsimile: (702) 655-3763 

micah@claggettlaw.com 

 

 

Attorneys for Respondents, Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons 

Electronically Filed
May 05 2021 05:58 p.m.
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Docket 81799   Document 2021-12951

mailto:john@Michaelsonlaw.com
mailto:micah@claggettlaw.com


1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Page 1 of10
M AC:15820-001 40779 9 4_ 1 6/25/2020 5:02 PM

M
A

R
Q

U
IS

A
U

R
B

A
C

H
C

O
F

F
IN

G
1
00

0
1

P
ar

k
R
un

D
ri
v
e

L
as

V
eg

as
,
N

ev
ad

a
89

14
5

(7
02

)
3
82

-0
71

1
F
A

X
:

(7
02

)
38

2
-5

8
16

Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Geraldine Tom ich , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 8369
Jam e s A. Beck strom , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas , Nevada 89 145
Teleph one : (702)382-0711
Facs im ile: (702)382-5816
gtom ich @ m aclaw .com
jbeck strom @ m aclaw .com
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In th e M atter ofth e Guardians h ip ofEstate of:

KATH LEEN JUNE JONES,

Protected Person.

Cas e No.: G-19 -052263-A
Dept. No.: B

HEARING REQUESTED

KIMBERLY JONES’S MOTION FOR ORDER QUIETING TITLE, DIRECTING
EXECUTION OF DEED, AND/OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE PETITION FOR

INSTRUCTION AND ADVICE

Plaintiff, Kim berly Jone s , as Guardian of th e Person and Estate ofKath leen June Jone s ,

th rough th e law firm ofM arq uis Aurbach Coffing, h ereby files th is M otion for O rder Quieting

Title, Directing Execution ofDeed, and/or in th e Alternative Petition for Instruction and Advice

(“M otion”). Th is M otion is bas ed on th e follow ing Points and Auth oritie s , th e pleadings and

papers on file h ere in, and any oralargum entby couns elperm itted atth e h earing on th is m atter.

Dated th is 25th day ofJune, 2020.
M ARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tom ich , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 8369
Jam e s A. Beck strom , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas , Nevada 89 145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
6/25/2020 5:22 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS OF AUTHORITIES

I. INTRODUCTION AND FACTS

Yetagain, th is cas e is forced in frontofth e Courtfollow ing th e m ostrecentch arade by th e

Protected Person’s h usband Rodney Yeom an and h is legalcouns elTy Keh oe . Now , for th e first

tim e ever and w ith no justification, Yeom an th rough M r. Ke h oe is intentionally h olding up th e

refinance of th e Protected Person’s realproperty in Anah e im , CA— w h ich th is Court already

ordered.

Specifically, Yeom an is refus ing to convey a spousaldeed to th e Anah e im property (th e

property th is court auth orized th e Guardian to refinance), w h ich is a re q uirem ent for any

underw riter to fund a refinance . Th e reason according to Yeom an is “h e might h ave an ow ners h ip

intere st”in th e property. Th is is de spite th e factth e property w as (1)purch as ed over th re e -decade s

before th e Protected Person m arried Yeom an;(2)Yeom an h as never be en on title and h as never

been listed on any m ortgage;(3)th e Protected Person h as funded th is property during th e entirety

ofh er m arriage w ith Yeom an from rentalproceeds and h er s eparate property socialsecurity;and

(4)Yeoman has already signed a spousal deed pertaining to the Protected Person’s Kraft Avenue

property (h as never m ade a claim of com m unity property to th e Protected Person’s realestate).

Know ing th e Protected Person is de sperately in ne ed ofincom e, Yeom an h as tak en th e low e stof

roads in yeta continued w ar offinancialattrition.

As a re sult, Kim berly, as Guardian ofth e Protected Person, petitions th is Courtfor (1)a

declaration and order q uieting title to th e Anah e im property in favor ofth e Protected Person, as

h er sole and s eparate property;and (2)an order pursuantto NRS 159 .171, auth orizing Kim berly

to s ign any and alltransfe r instrum ents on be h alfofth e Protected Person pertaining to th e Anah e im

property. In th e alternative, s h ould th e Court feelanoth er cours e of action w ould be m ore

expedient,Kim be rly h ereby m oves th e Courtfor advice and instruction pursuantto NRS 159 .169 .

///

///

///

///
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II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. Th e Protected Person purch as ed th atrealproperty com m only de scribed as 1054 S.

Verde Stre et, Anah e im , CA 9 2805 (th e “Property”)w h en itw as builtin approxim ately 19 68.1

2. O n Septem ber 16, 19 87, th e Protected Person q uitclaim ed th e Property from h er

s eparate property to h er and h er prior h usband.2

3. Th e Protected Person’s h usband died approxim ately 20 years ago, leaving th e

Protected Person th e sole ow ner ofth e Property.

4. O n Septem ber 5,2003,th e Protected Person, years prior to h er m arriage to Yeom an

m ortgaged th e Property for $160,000.3 Th e m ortgage w as solely in th e nam e of th e Protected

Person and th e Protected Person h as alw ays paid th e m ortgage from h er s eparate property.

5. O n or around th e firstw ee k ofJune, Yeom an w as contacted and as k ed to s ign th e

spousaldeed for th e Property. Yeom an w as advis ed th ata refinance could notoccur unles s th e

de ed w as s igned.

6. O n June 18, 2020, after Yeom an w ouldn’tprovide an answ er to Kim berly, couns el

for Kim berly drafted a spousaldeed and forw arded itto Yeom an’s couns el— Ty Keh oe, Es q .4

7. O nce again, on June 19 , 2020, couns elfor Kim berly as k ed ifYeom an w as going to

s ign th e spousaldeed. No re spons e w as provided.

8. Th ereafter, couns elfor th e Protected Person also as k ed M r. Ke h oe ifth e de ed w as

going to be s igned.

9 . O nce again, on June 22, 2020, couns elfor Kim berly as k ed ifYeom an w as going to

s ign th e spousaldeed. Couns elrece ived no re spons e untilJune 24, 2020.

1 Th e originaldeed for th e purch as e is pending, as it could not be located due to its age . Th is w illbe
supplem ented.

2 See Quitclaim Deed, attach ed as Exhibit 1.

3 See Deed ofTrust, attach ed as Exhibit 2.

4 See SpousalDeed, attach ed as Exhibit 3.
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10. O n June 24, 2020,Yeom an refus ed to s ign th e de ed via an e -m ailfrom h is attorney,

w h ich rais ed various frivolous and vexatious claim s th atYeom an m ay som e h ow h ave an intere st

in th e Property.5

III. LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. TITLE TO THE PROPERTY MUST BE QUIETED IN FAVOR OF THE
PROTECTED PERSON, ESTABLISHING THE PROPERTY AS THE
PROTECTED PERSON’S SOLE AND SEPARATE PROPERTY.

Th is Courtis ve sted w ith inh erentpow er in declaring th e righ ts and intere sts ofcom peting

intere sts in realproperty. W h ile no viable dispute exists th at th e Protected Person h olds th e

Anah e im Property as h e r sole and s eparate property, Yeom an h as refus ed to s ign a spousalde ed

ack now ledging th is undisputed fact. As a re sult,th e only w ay th e Property can be refinanced is for

an orde r q uieting title in favor ofth e Protected Person. NRS 40.010 auth orize s q uiettitle actions

and state s :

NRS 40.010 Actions may be brought against adverse claimants. An action
m ay be brough tby any person againstanoth er w h o claim s an e state or intere stin
realproperty, advers e to th e person bringing th e action, for th e purpos e of
determ ining such advers e claim .

H ere , w h ile everyone w as in agreem entth e Property w as th e Protected Person’s sole and

s eparate Property, Yeom an h as now rais ed an advers e intere st in th e Property— w h ere h e h as

vaguely stated h e “m ay”h ave an intere stin th e Property. Th is is false .

1. The Property is the Separate Property of the Protected Person.

NRS 123.130 define s s eparate property as “[a]llproperty ofa spous e ow ned by h im or h er

before m arriage . . .”Each spous e controls th e ir s eparate property and th e cons entof th e oth e r

spous e to convey, ch arge, encum ber, or dispos e of th e property is not req uired. NRS 123.170.

H ere , as stated above, th is is a very s im ple q ue stion.

Th e Property w as purch as ed in 19 68 by th e Protected Person, decade s before h er m arriage

to Yeom an. Th e Property h as alw ays be en paid for by th e Protected Person. During th e Protected

Person’s m arriage, th e Property h as alw ays be en titled as “June Jone s , a M arried W om an, Sole

5 See June 24, 2020 Em ailofTy Ke h oe , Es q ., attach ed as Exhibit 4.
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and Separate Property.”6 M oreover, th e Protected Person h as be en th e sole m ortgagor on th e

Property and h as alw ays m aintained th e Property.

Indeed,Yeom an conceded th e s e is sue s in h is partialoppos ition to th e Petition to Refinance,

w h ere h e cons istently referred to th e Property as not be ing h is , never rais ed any claim to th e

Property in h is pleadings or during argum ent, and h as never s et forth any facts to indicate h e

m aintains an intere stin th e Property.7 W ith in h is O ppos ition, Yeom an refe rs to th e refinance at

is sue be ing “June’s refinance”and rais e s concerns th atth e im provem ents th e refinance w as sough t

to fund w ould “costJune’s estate”m ore m oney th an e stim ated by Kim berly.8 (Em ph as is added.)

W h atm ak e s th is even m ore egregious is th e factth atYeoman has already signed a spousal

deed for the highly contested transfer of the Kraft Avenue property, which he conveniently did

so his daughter could obtain title to that property.9 Th is is de spite th e factJune h as ow ned th e

KraftAvenue property for a m uch s h orter period oftim e th an th e Anah e im Property and Yeom an

actually lived in th e KraftAvenue property. Even m ore agregious , w h en June h as called Yeom an

to as k h im w h y h e w on’ts ign th e de ed,Yeom an h as stated h e h ad “no problem s igning it”and “h e

h as noth ing to do w ith th e Property.”Th is is just anoth er exam ple of Yeom an’s de spicable

gam e sm ans h ip— led by h is legalcouns el. As such , an order of th is Court s h ould is sue q uieting

title in favor ofJune Jone s , as h er sole and s eparate property.

2. Yeoman Has No Claim to the Protected Person’s Property.

Transm utation from s eparate to com m unity property m ust be s h ow n by clear and

convincing evidence . Sprenger v. Sprenger,110 Nev. 855,858,878 P.2d 284,286 (19 9 4). W ith out

an expre s s declaration transm uting s eparate property, a com m unity m ay only acq uire an intere st

in one spous e’s s eparate property if th e com m unity contribute s to th e purch as e price of th e

6 Exh ibit2.

7 See Yeom an’s Re spons e to Petition for Approvalto Refinance RealProperty of th e Protected Person,
attach ed as Exhibit 5.

8 Id. at2:15-17

9 See Executed SpousalDeed for 6277 W . KraftAvenue , attach ed as Exhibit 6.

1426



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Page 6 of10
M AC:15820-001 40779 9 4_ 1 6/25/2020 5:02 PM

M
A

R
Q

U
IS

A
U

R
B

A
C

H
C

O
F

F
IN

G
1
00

0
1

P
ar

k
R
un

D
ri
v
e

L
as

V
eg

as
,
N

ev
ad

a
89

14
5

(7
02

)
3
82

-0
71

1
F
A

X
:

(7
02

)
38

2
-5

8
16

property. Robison v. Robison, 100 Nev. 668, 671, 69 1 P.2d, 451 (19 84). To m eetth is standard a

spous e m ustprove: (1)th ere is apurch as e m oney m ortgage,and (2)th e com m unity m ade paym ents

on th e purch as e m oney m ortgage . See Verheyden v. Verheyden, 104 Nev. 342, 344, 757 P.2d 1328

(19 88).

Lik ew is e , a com m unity m ay acq uire an intere st in s eparate property by contributing to

im provem ents ofth e property. H ow ever, in order to acq uire such an intere st, th e com m unity m ust

prove “th e s e im provem ents increas ed th e value ofth e h ous e .”Id. at345. Im portantly,expenditure s

“m erely for routine m aintenance”do notgrantan intere stto th e com m unity. Id. H ere ,Yeom an h as

rais ed a claim to th e Property th rough vague as s ertions ofh is couns elth at“h e m ay discover dow n

th e road”h e h as an intere st in th e Property.10 Indeed, Yeom an’s attorney h as confirm ed th at

Yeom an cannotidentify a s ingle transaction in th e pastten years th atcould ris e to th e levelofan

im puted transm utation ofth e Property.11

Under th e law ,Yeom an is re q uired to s etforth evidence sufficientto rebutth e pre sum ption

th atth e Property, h aving been purch as ed decade s before h e m etth e Protected Person and w h ich

h as alw ays be en vested as “June Jone s , a M arried W om an, Sole and Separate Property.”Yeom an

h as no such evidence, becaus e itdoe sn’texist. Rath er, th e factis th ats ince th e Protected Person

w as m arried to Yeom an, h er rentalincom e from th e Property along w ith h e r socialsecurity th at

w as depos ited into h er account in w h ich Yeom an w as not on— paid for th e m ortgage on th e

Property. Socialsecurity incom e and rentalincom e derived form s eparate property is not

com m unity property. See Wolff v. Wolff, 112 Nev. 1355, 1362, 9 29 P.2d 9 16, 9 21 (19 9 6) (social

security retirem entbenefits are th e s eparate property ofth e spous e rece iving th em ). As a re sult,

judgm entin favor ofth e Protected Person declaring th e Property as h e r sole and s eparate property

s h ould be entered.

///

///

10 See Exh ibit4.

11 Id.
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B. THIS COURT SHOULD AUTHORIZE KIMBERLY TO SIGN ALL
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE TRANSFER OF
PROPERTY.

To avoid any oth er is sue s w ith th is refinance, th is Courts h ould also auth orize Kim berly to

s ign alldocum ents nece s sary to effectuate th e refinance ofth e Property. W h ile th is w as im plied in

th e Court’s prior orde r concerning th e Petition for Refinance, to avoid furth er delay, th is Court

s h ould auth orize Kim berly to s ign any docum ents pertaining to th e refinance on be h alf of th e

Protected Person.

NRS 159 .171 state s :

Executing and recording legal documents.

. . .

2. To carry out effectively any transaction affecting th e property of th e
protected person as auth orized by th is ch apter,th e courtm ay auth orize th e guardian
to execute any prom is s ory note, m ortgage, de ed of trust, de ed, leas e , s ecurity
agreem entor oth er legaldocum entor instrum entw h ich is reasonably nece s sary to
carry outsuch transaction.

As a re sult, an O rder s h ould be is sued stating Kim berly is auth orized to s ign any docum ents to

effectuate th e refinance ofth e Property.

C. SHOULD THIS COURT REQUIRE A FORMAL ACTION BE BROUGHT
TO QUIET TITLE, KIMBERLY ASKS THE COURT TO AUTHORIZE
SUCH AN ACTION, SET A CONDENSED BRIEFING SCHEDULE, AND
ADMONISH THE PARTIES THAT SANCTIONS WILL BE
CONSIDERED.

If Yeom an de s ire s to double dow n on h is couns el’s advice to continue h is vexatious

argum entin favor ofm ak ing a claim to th e Property,th is Courts h ould s eta s h ortbriefing sch edule

on th is is sue so itcan be dealtw ith q uick ly bas ed on th e Protected Person’s financialpos ition. Th e

is sue of w h eth er s eparate realproperty h as be en transm uted is proven th rough docum ents and

records . Th e pre sum ption of s eparate property applie s to th e Protected Person. To rebut th is

pre sum ption, itis th e burden ofYeom an to produce evidence th atextens ive com m unity funds w ere

applied to th e purch as e ofth e Property and th atas a re sultth e Property transm uted from s eparate

to com m unity property. To do so, Yeom an m ustproduce proof of paym ents to th e property via

tracing. Th e only w ay th is is done is w ith bank accounts .
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Yeom an s h ould be re q uired to produce any such evidence on s h ortened tim e and th is Court

s h ould allow Kim berly to m ove for sum m ary judgm ent on th e is sue . Th is w ould be h igh ly

appropriate and of cours e ifYeom an pre s ented evidence th atcould rem otely ris e to th e levelof

rebutting th e pre sum ption, th e Court could order a trial. H ow ever, th at w illnot be nece s sary,

becaus e Yeom an k now s w ellno evidence supports h is frivolous pos ition. W h atever cours e th e

Courtch oos e s , its h ould m ak e clear to Yeom an th ath is filings w ith th is Courtw illbe scrutinized

under NRS 7.085 and sanctions for bas eles s claim s not vested in law w illbe levied. NRS

7.085 allow s th e districtcourtto m ak e an attorney personally liable for th e attorney fe e s and costs

an opponentincurs w h en th e attorney “[f]ile [s], m aintain[s]or defend[s]a civilaction ... [th at]is

notw ell-grounded in factor is notw arranted by existing law or by [a good faith ] argum entfor

ch anging th e existing law .”Th e Protected Person’s e state s h ould notbe re q uired to defeatfrivolous

unw arranted litigation— exactly w h atYeom an and h is attorney are claim ing by now h olding up

th e refinance and claim ing an intere stin th e Property.

D. IN THE ALTERNATIVE, KIMBERLY SEEKS INSTRUCTION AND
ADVICE FROM THE COURT.

Sh ould th e Courtbelieve anoth er cours e ofaction is m ore prudentto ensure th e Protected

Person can m ove forw ard w ith th e refinance, Kim berly s e e k s instruction and advice from th e

Court. NRS159 .169 auth orize s th e Courtto provide instruction and advice in th is type ofs ituation,

w h ere a clear nece s s ity exists to obtain funding for th e Protected Person, butth atnece s s ity is be ing

delayed by a vexatious claim .

Kim berly s e e k s instruction and advice from th e Courtas to h ow to proce ed if th e Court

feels a m ore expedient option is available. O ne option m ay be to m ove th is q uiet title action

forw ard and advis e Yeom an and h is legalcouns elth at if th ey continue dow n th is path of

gam e sm ans h ip, delay, and vexatious conductagainstth e Protected Person— th ey w illbe subject

to sanctions . Kim berly defers to th e Courton th is subject.

///

///

///
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IV. CONCLUSION

Based on th e foregoing, th e Court s h ould q uiet title in favor of th e Protected Person,

auth orize Kim berly to execute any docum ents nece s sary for th e refinance of th e Property, and

instructKim berly as itde em s nece s sary.

Dated th is 25th day ofJune, 2020.
M ARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tom ich , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 8369
Jam e s A. Beck strom , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas , Nevada 89 145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones, as
Guardian of the Person and
Estate of Kathleen June Jones
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I h ereby certify th at th e foregoing KIM BERLY JONES’S M OTION FOR ORDER

QUIETING TITLE,DIRECTING EXECUTION OFDEED,AND/OR IN TH E ALTERNATIVE

PETITION FOR INSTRUCTION AND ADVICE w as subm itted electronically for filing and/or

s ervice w ith th e Eigh th JudicialDistrictCourton th e 25th day ofJune, 2020. Electronic s ervice

ofth e foregoing docum ents h allbe m ade in accordance w ith th e E-Service Listas follow s :12

Ty E. Ke h oe , Es q .
KEH O E & ASSOCIATES

871 Coronado Center Drive, Ste . 200
H enderson, NV89 052

M atth ew C. Piccolo, Es q .
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES

2450 St. Ros e Pk w y., Ste. 210
H enderson, NV89 074

Laura Deete r, Es q .
Nedda Gh andi, Es q .

725 S. 8th Street, Ste . 100
Las Vegas , NV89 101

Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman

M aria L. Parra-Sandoval, Es q .
LEGALAID OFSOUTH ERN NEVADA

725 E. Ch arleston Blvd.
Las Vegas , NV89 104

Attorneys for Protected Person

Joh n P. M ich aelson, Es q .
M ICH AELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD.

2200 Paseo Verde Park w ay, Ste . 160
H enderson, NV89 052

Attorneys for Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons

/s/ Cheryl Becnel
An em ployee ofM arq uis Aurbach Coffing

12 Pursuantto EDCR 8.05(a), each party w h o subm its an E-Filed docum entth rough th e E-Filing System
cons ents to electronic s ervice in accordance w ith NRCP5(b)(2)(D).
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James A. Beckstrom

From: Ty <tykehoelaw@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 24, 2020 2:15 PM
To: James A. Beckstrom
Cc: Matthew C. Piccolo; Laura Deeter; Maria Parra-Sandoval
Subject: Re:  [External]  Following up on Spousal Deed

Gerry wants to make clear that he decided on his own that he will not sign the spousal deed.  He has his own 
reasons.  My legal reasons, and insights, are as follows: 
 
1 ‐ I can't conceive of why I would encourage Gerry to release any interest he has in the Anaheim property.  I do not 
have personal knowledge of whether he has an interest.  I presume you do not either.  Would you really be in a position 
to provide an indemnity to Gerry in case it is discovered down the road he does have an interest?  I am not in a position 
to do so.  How do you know whether Gerry contributed $50,000 towards the Anaheim property 7 years ago?  I seriously 
doubt whether Kimberly even knows?  How would she when she was never involved with her Mom's finances until mid‐
2019?  Why should Gerry voluntarily release any such possible interest?  Not even Gerry knows as he does not 
remember every financial transaction for the past 10 years, does not have access to June's financial information, and 
June and Gerry lived as a normal martial community including not worrying about financial technicalities prior to the bad 
faith actions of June's children. 
 
2 ‐ At the beginning of the guardianship there were multiple allegations by multiple parties that Dick and Gerry had 
recently refinanced the Anaheim property and taken money from June.  We always denied the same, but it was one of 
the many unsubstantiated inflammatory allegations against Dick and Gerry.  My understanding remains that no such 
refinance took place, and your recent court filings seem to indicate the same.  Will you please confirm whether such 
allegations are still being made? 
 
3 ‐ Presuming that no such refinance took place (and I suppose maybe even if it did), has Kimberly had an audit done on 
all positive and negative payments related to the Anaheim property since June and Gerry were married?  Will you 
provide me the same?  Again, I can't imagine how you can demand Gerry release his interest in property when you have 
no idea what that interest consists of. 
 
4 ‐ Interestingly, you are literally suing Gerry for signing a spousal deed because it allegedly evidences bad faith, and now 
you are requesting Gerry sign another spousal deed.  Your A‐Case complaint (paragraphs 41 and 125) states that Gerry 
participated in the fraudulent transfer of the Kraft house because he signed a spousal deed related to that 
transfer.  Now you are asking him to sign another spousal deed.  Would you then accuse him of additional fraud?  We 
have always stated the Kraft spousal deed was not his idea, but required by QuickClaim, and nonetheless, you included 
the inflammatory allegations in your complaint.  Perhaps you should amend your complaint before making demands on 
Gerry. 
 
5 ‐ We have asserted claims against June's estate, and intend to assert additional claims.  So, I don't see why it would 
make sense for Gerry to release any interest in the primary asset of June's estate. 
 
6 ‐ As to your rushed demands, they started before the order was even entered approving the refinance.  That order was 
only entered two days ago.  I'm not sure why it took almost 5 weeks to obtain the order when allegedly there was an 
urgency.  I also note the order remains deficient under the statute.  Please provide the refinance documentation, 
including any communications regarding the bank's or title company's request for a spousal deed. 
 
7 ‐ Dick has attempted in good faith to resolve these matters, and a complete lack of good faith is being received in 
return.  Instead, continual bad‐faith threats of motions, sanctions, and further litigation have been the norm.  We make 
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reasonable requests for things like medical records that the Court ordered be turned over 7 months ago, and rather than 
simply responding to the requests you make personal attacks and irrational excuses.  I can only imagine that is not 
engendering any good will with Gerry. 
 
Ty 
 
On Tue, Jun 23, 2020 at 7:30 AM James A. Beckstrom <jbeckstrom@maclaw.com> wrote: 

I’m not going to argue with you. If you don’t confirm your client will sign and make the deed available for pick up 
Thursday, I am filing a motion. Because you cannot conceive how I would do that, maybe one of the two other 
attorneys you have on this case can guide you in the direction to locate the authority. I don’t want to waste the Court’s 
time on this, but this needs to be done. You are well aware of the motion that was filed on this refinance, as your client 
materially participated in that hearing. I will move to sanction your client again if you continue to guide him this way.  

  

It’s a very simple request. 

  

 

  

James A. Beckstrom, Esq. 

10001 Park Run Drive 

Las Vegas, NV 89145 

t | 702.207.6081 

f | 702.382.5816 

jbeckstrom@maclaw.com 

maclaw.com 

 Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail!  

DO NOT read, copy or disseminate this communication unless you are the intended addressee. This e-mail communication contains confidential and/or privileged 
information intended only for the addressee. If you have received this communication in error, please call us (collect) immediately at (702) 382-0711 and ask to speak to the 
sender of the communication. Also please e-mail the sender and notify the sender immediately that you have received the communication in error. Thank you. Marquis 
Aurbach Coffing - Attorneys at Law 

  

From: Ty <tykehoelaw@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 3:35 AM 
To: James A. Beckstrom <jbeckstrom@maclaw.com> 
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Cc: Matthew C. Piccolo <Matt@piccololawoffices.com>; Laura Deeter <laura@ghandilaw.com> 
Subject: Re: [External] Following up on Spousal Deed 

  

James, 

  

It is ironic you are making demands and threats at a time that you are literally failing to comply with the Court's written 
order.  You are again threatening us for allegedly delaying 10 days to respond to you, during a time Gerry was on 
vacation and we have been working to comply with your artificial deadlines in the A case, while you literally took 7 
months to even begin complying with the Court's written order to produce medical records and information.  We will 
get back to you in the next couple days when we have some time.  In the meantime, I would love to hear the good faith 
basis for your threatened motion as I literally cannot conceive of one.  

  

Sincerely, 

  

Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. 

Kehoe & Associates 

871 Coronado Center Drive 

Suite 200 

Henderson, NV  89052 

Telephone: 702.837.1908 

Facsimile: 702.837.1932 

Cellular: 702.528.8704 

E-Mail: TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com (Changed from TyKehoeLaw@aol.com) 

  

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE 

  

This message and any attachments are for the named person's use only.  The message and any attachment may 
contain confidential, proprietary or privileged information.  No confidentiality or privilege is waived or lost by any 
mistransmission.  If you receive this message in error, please DO NOT OPEN ANY ATTACHMENTS, immediately notify 
the sender, delete all copies of it from your system, and destroy any hard copies of it.  Please do not, directly or 
indirectly, use, disclose, distribute, print or copy any part of this message if you are not the intended recipient.  Thank 
you. 
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On Mon, Jun 22, 2020 at 2:20 PM James A. Beckstrom <jbeckstrom@maclaw.com> wrote: 

Please advise if your client is going to sign the spousal deed. He is in town and has known about this for over ten days. 

  

If he won’t I am going to be filing a motion with the Court.  

  

 

  

James A. Beckstrom, Esq. 

10001 Park Run Drive 

Las Vegas, NV 89145 

t | 702.207.6081 

f | 702.382.5816 

jbeckstrom@maclaw.com 

maclaw.com 

 Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail!  

DO NOT read, copy or disseminate this communication unless you are the intended addressee. This e-mail communication contains confidential and/or privileged 
information intended only for the addressee. If you have received this communication in error, please call us (collect) immediately at (702) 382-0711 and ask to speak to 
the sender of the communication. Also please e-mail the sender and notify the sender immediately that you have received the communication in error. Thank you. Marquis 
Aurbach Coffing - Attorneys at Law 

  

  

  

This email has been scanned for spam and viruses by Proofpoint Essentials. Click here to report this email as spam. 
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This email has been scanned for spam and viruses by Proofpoint Essentials. Click here to report this email as spam. 
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GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM 
Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10562 
725 S. 8th Street, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada  89101 
Telephone:  (702) 878-1115 
Facsimile: (702) 979-2485 
laura@ghandilaw.com 
 
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 
TY E. KEHOE, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 006011 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Telephone: (702) 837-1908 
Facsimile: (702) 837-1932 
TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com 

 
  Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
  Nevada Bar No. 14331 
  PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 
  8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150  
  Las Vegas, NV 89123 
  Tel: (702) 749-3699 
  Fax: (702) 944-6630 
  matt@piccololawoffices.com 
 
 Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
In the matter of the Guardianship of the Person 
and Estate of: 
 
 KATHLEEN JUNE JONES, 
 
  Adult Protected Person. 
 

             
   Case No.:     G-19-052263-A 
   Dept. No:     B 
 
   Date:  May 20, 2020 (OST) 
   Time:  9:00 a.m. (OST) 

 
RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR APPROVAL TO REFINANCE REAL PROPERTY 

OF THE PROTECTED PERSON 
 
 Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), husband of the Protected Person Kathleen June Jones 

(“June”), by and through his counsel of record, submits this Response to Petition for Approval 

to Refinance Real Property of the Protected Person. 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/18/2020 8:36 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

1461



 

Page 2 of 6 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 Gerry does not object to refinancing the Anaheim property, as it does not make sense 

for the home to sit empty any longer, and it clearly cannot be rented to a new tenant in its current 

condition; however, he has significant concerns regarding Kimberly’s proposed process for 

accomplishing the refinance and remodel, along with concerns about the information that has 

been presented to the Court so far. Surprisingly, Gerry agrees with Robyn and Donna on many 

of these issues, and shares many of the same concerns raised by Robyn and Donna in their 

Joinder to the Petition to Refinance filed herein on May 14, 2020. 

Concerns about the Petition to Refinance. 

The Petition to Refinance seeks $20,000 to repair and remodel the Anaheim house. 

However, the Petition includes no specifics regarding how the $20,000 will be used, nor any 

confirmation the $20,000 is adequate to complete the necessary repairs and remodeling. If 

$20,000 (or even $37,000) proves to be inadequate, then the guardian will need to seek an 

additional refinance, which will cost June’s estate several thousand dollars more. Therefore, as 

also requested by Robyn and Donna, a specific work estimate from a licensed contractor should 

be provided. 

Gerry also objects, like Robyn and Donna, to Kimberly’s boyfriend Dean completing the 

work on the Anaheim home. Kimberly should not be in a position to approve payments to her 

boyfriend out of June’s estate. The failure by Kimberly to include this information in the Petition 

to Refinance is very concerning. 

If only $20,000 is used for repairs and remodeling, then the guardian should be required 

to account more specifically for why an additional $17,000 is being sought from June’s 

refinance, and for what purpose such funds will be used. With Kimberly living with June, and 

possibly receiving financial support from June, there is a potential conflict of interest in 

Kimberly seeking additional cash funds from June’s assets. 
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The Petition to Refinance should also state how long it will take before cash can be 

received from the refinance, and also explain how June will meet her expenses in the meantime. 

Exhibit 3 to the Petition to Refinance, which is the Loan Detail & Fee Worksheet, shows 

an anticipated interest rate of 3.5%. However, according to the same document, this interest rate 

is for an “owner occupied” loan. June will not be occupying this property. Therefore, the interest 

rate will be higher, thus calling into question the Petition’s basic premise that June will save 

money based upon refinancing to a lower interest rate.  

The same exhibit shows a cost of almost $5,000 to obtain the refinance. It may be 

necessary to refinance the Anaheim home to obtain funds to make the Anaheim property 

habitable regardless of the expense for the refinance; however, the expense should be considered 

as decisions are made. 

The same exhibit appears to be a very preliminary document. It is unclear whether this is 

an actual loan commitment, and thus it is unclear whether June has qualified for a loan or even 

could qualify. The Petitioner should answer these questions. 

The Petition does not explain why June’s son left the Anaheim property in such a 

deplorable condition, especially after paying for years only 50% of the market rental rate. Does 

Kimberly plan to seek any reimbursement from Scott? 

Upon information provided by June to Gerry, Scott moved out of the Anaheim home in 

March 2020. Therefore, Kimberly should explain why the home sat empty and why the Petition 

to Refinance is only now being filed? 

 It is unclear whether the valuation of the Anaheim home will become relevant based upon 

such a low loan-to-value percentage; however, it is almost certain the Anaheim home, in the 

condition evidenced by the photos, is not worth the value attributed by Zillow.  Robyn and Donna 

have requested a formal appraisal. 

 NRS 159.121 requires the Court to: 
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. . . prescribe the maximum amount of each loan, the maximum 
rate of interest and the date of final maturity of each loan, and may 
authorize the guardian to secure any loan by mortgage, deed of 
trust, pledge or other security transaction authorized by the laws 
of this state. 
 

The current Petition does not pray for any specific interest rate. And, as stated above, it is very 

unlikely for the quoted owner-occupied rate to be approved by a lender. A maximum interest 

rate must be presented for consideration by the Court.  If the maximum rate is 3.5%, then that 

amount should be specified in the Order. 

 Additionally, the statute requires a loan “authorized by the laws of this state.” It is unclear 

whether the order entered by this court will be acceptable to a California title company for 

closing purposes. 

Robyn and Donna joined in the Petition to Refinance and stated:  “upon information and 

belief, [June] receives approximately $1,200 per month in social security.” This is another 

misstatement by Robyn and Donna. The Budget filed herein clearly shows Social Security 

income of $1,536 per month. Therefore, they could have simply verified this number rather than 

making a misstatement based upon “information and belief.” 

Issues raised by the Petition to Refinance related to Gerry’s Petition to Remove Kimberly. 

Additionally, the Motion to Refinance raises many issues that are relevant to the Petition 

to Remove Kimberly currently pending before this Court. 

The Petition to Refinance indicates June’s ability to currently be involved in making 

decisions regarding her real property. Nonetheless, Kimberly alleges June was unable to do so 

in January 2018 regarding the Kraft property. Gerry and Dick have always stated June was 

competent to make her own decisions in January 2018, without any involvement of her family. 

If Kimberly believes she is competent now, then she clearly would have been competent almost 

2.5 years ago. Therefore, there are no other material allegations against Gerry which they claim 

would prevent him from being a suitable guardian. 
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The Petition to Refinance seems to indicate the Anaheim house was refinanced in 2003. 

(The last page of the exhibits shows a maturity date of 2033.) This is years before June was 

married to Gerry, and thus the early allegations by Robyn, Donna and Kimberly that Gerry or 

Dick Powell improperly refinanced the Anaheim house are entirely false (as Gerry and Dick 

have repeatedly stated). See Kimberly’s October 2, 2019 Opposition at 8:23 wherein she alleges 

the Anaheim property was recently refinanced and that she would be providing documentation 

related to the same (which she has still never done). In Robyn and Donna’s Reply filed on 

October 14, 2019, they also ask questions about a refinance. This is simply another initial 

allegation by Robyn, Donna, and Kimberly that is entirely unsubstantiated. 

The Petition to Refinance also raises concerns about Kimberly’s fitness to remain as 

guardian. Why does June now need her Anaheim equity to pay her expenses? How did she live 

for nine years without using such equity? Who was subsidizing her expenses before while June 

rented at a reduced rate to her son Scott? (The Investigator’s report indicates that Dick Powell 

was subsidizing June’s expenses.) If Kimberly was truly the power of attorney and aware of 

June’s diminished capacity (as she claims), why did she never step in and demand Scott pay 

more in rent? Why did Scott move out and cease paying $1,200 per month in rent prior to 

Kimberly having funds in place to repair the home, thus leaving the home empty and not 

generating any income for June? Upon information and belief, Scott moved out in mid-March, 

so why did Kimberly wait approximately two months to even file the motion requesting a 

refinance? Why doesn’t Kimberly yet have a loan commitment rather than simply the loan 

estimate (which estimate includes multiple errors, including stating that the home will be owner 

occupied)? Based upon the photos produced in the Motion to Refinance, it appears the home will 

likely require significantly more than $20,000 to repair. This reality, and the other points, 

seriously call into question Kimberly’s ability to properly act as the guardian of June’s estate. 
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Kimberly repeatedly argues that June had diminished capacity as far back as 2014. 

However, no documentation has ever been produced evidencing this allegation, and now the 

Motion to Refinance suggests June still has capacity. This is another example of the multitude 

of unsubstantiated claims made by Kimberly, Robyn and Donna throughout this guardianship 

process. 

Conclusion. 

 While it is clear the Anaheim home needs to be repaired and remodeled to allow it to be 

rented out and not sit empty, it is entirely unclear that Kimberly is capable of properly 

accomplishing the same. She appears to have conflicts of interest in making these decisions, and 

she appears to lack the competence to properly accomplish this for the best interests of June.  

And based upon Robyn and Donna’s joinder, it is not just Gerry that has concerns about 

Kimberly’s actions and inactions. 

Dated this 18th day of May, 2020.  GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM 
       /s/ Laura A. Deeter                      

       Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
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Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Geraldine Tom ich , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 8369
Jam e s A. Beck strom , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas , Nevada 89 145
Teleph one : (702)382-0711
Facs im ile: (702)382-5816
gtom ich @ m aclaw .com
jbeck strom @ m aclaw .com
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In th e M atter ofth e Guardians h ip ofEstate of:

KATH LEEN JUNE JONES,

Protected Person.

KIM BERLY JONES, AS GUARDIAN O FTH E
PERSON AND ESTATE OFKATH LEEN JUNE
JONES, a protected person,

Plaintiffs ,

v.

RICH ARD POW ELL, an individual;CANDICE
POW ELL, an individual; RODNEY GERALD
YEOM AN, an individual;DOES I-X, inclus ive;
and RO E CORPORATIONS I-X, inclus ive,

Defendants .

AND ALLRELATED CLAIM S.

Cas e No.: G-19 -052263-A
Dept. No.: B

Case No.: A-19 -807458-C
Dept. No.: 6

HEARING REQUESTED

MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE

COM ES NOW , Kim berly Jones , as Guardian of th e Person and Estate ofKath leen June

Jone s (“M s . Jone s”), th rough th e law firm of M arq uis Aurbach Coffing, and Rich ard Pow ell,

Candice Pow ell,and Rodney Gerald Yeom an (h ere inafter “Defendants”),th rough th e law firm s of

Keh oe & As sociate s and Piccolo Law O ffice s , h e reby files th e follow ing M otion to Consolidate

Cas e No. A-19 -807458-C, currently pending before th e H onorable Jacq ueline M . Bluth , w ith th e

above entitled m atter, Cas e No. G-19 -052263-A, also pending before th e H onorable Judge Linda

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
6/25/2020 5:22 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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M arq uis , pursuantto NRCP42(a). Th is M otion is bas ed upon papers and pleadings on file h e re in,

th e attach ed M em orandum ofPoints and Auth oritie s , and any oralargum entperm itted atth e tim e

ofth e h earing on th is m atter.

Dated th is 25th day ofJune, 2020.
M ARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tom ich , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 8369
Jam e s A. Beck strom , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas , Nevada 89 145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones, as
Guardian of the Person and
Estate of Kathleen June Jones

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to NRCP 42(a), Cas e No. A-19 -807458-C, currently pending before th e

H onorable Jacq ueline M . Bluth , s h ould be consolidated w ith th e instantcas e , becaus e both actions

involve com m on q ue stions oflaw and fact, partie s , and aris e outofth e sam e s erie s ofevents . For

th is reason, and th e additionalreasons discus s e d below , consolidation is w arranted to avoid

unnece s sary costs , pos s ible incons istentrulings and to s im ilarly advance judicialeconom y.

M oreover, th is Courtbe ing tas k ed w ith ensuring th e Protected Person is protected from

abus e , including th e abus e of unw arranted and frivolous litigation. Th is Court h aving been

involved in th is cas e for an extended period oftim e is in th e be stpos ition to pre s ide over th is cas e

in a cost-effective m anner th atw illsave th e partie s tim e and m oney.

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. THE GUARDIANSHIP

Th e Court is w ellaw are of th e facts and circum stance s of th is Guardians h ip. Th e

Guardians h ip w as triggered w h en th e Protected Person’s fam ily discovered th at th e Protected

Person’s h usband, Rodney Yeom an (“Yeom an”) along w ith h is daugh ter and son-in-law Kandi

and Rich ard Pow elltransferred th e Protected Person’s h om e to th em s elve s for m oney th atw as
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never paid to th e Protected Person. M oreover, upon m ars h aling th e as s ets ofth e Protected Person,

itw as also discovered, am ong oth er th ings , th atth e Protected Person’s jointbank accounts w ere

stripped from h er, along w ith th ousands of dollars in th os e accounts . Th e s e events re sulted in

Kim berly s e e k ing perm is s ion to file a s eparate “A-Cas e .”Th is Courtgranted th atm otion.

B. CASE NO. A-19-807458-C

Kim berly filed h er Com plaint in Cas e No. A-19 -807458-C on Decem ber 23, 2019 .

Kim berly as s erted th e follow ing caus e s of action: Fraud, Conspiracy, Elder Abus e , Declaratory

Relief, Breach ofFiduciary Duty, Recis s ion ofInstrum ent/QuietTitle, Tortious Breach ofGood

Faith and Fair Dealing, and IIED. Th e s e caus e s ofaction w ere brough tagainstYeom an, Rich ard

Pow ell, and Kandi Pow ell. O n M arch 6, 2020, Kim berly filed an Am ended Com plaint, as s erting

th e sam e caus e s ofaction.1

Th ereafter, Yeom an, Rich ard, and Kandi m oved to dism is s th e Com plaint, w h ich w as

denied in its entirety. Yeom an, R ich ard, and Kandi th en after stalling for over th re e m onth s , filed

a Counter-claim and Th ird-Party com plaint on June 22, 2020.2 W ith in th e Counter-claim and

Th ird-Party com plaint, w ere th e follow ing caus e s of action: (1) IIED (re sulting from w h at is

alleged to be tak ing th e Protected Person from yeom an);(2) Tre spas s (alleging th e Guardian

unlaw fully occupie s th e Protected Person’s h om e); (3) Nuisance (alleging th e Guardian is

obstructing us e ofth e KraftAvenue Property);(4)UnjustEnrich m ent;(5)IntentionalInterfe rence

w ith Contractualrelations (alleging th e Guardian interfered w ith th e sale of th e KraftAvenue

property); (6) Los s of Consortium (alleging th e guardian h as deprived Yeom an of h is w ife’s

com panions h ip);and (7)Abus e ofProce s s (alleging th e Guardians h ip Cas e w as “blatantly false”).

Th e Counter-claim and Th ird-Party Com plaint are bas ed on legally deficient caus e s of

action, butdirectly im plicate th is guardians h ip and th e facts centralto th is guardians h ip.

III. LEGAL ARGUMENT

Pursuantto NRCP42(a), consolidation is proper as itm andate s th at:

1 See FirstAm ended Com plaint, attach ed as Exhibit 1.

2 See Counter-Claim and Th ird-Party Com plaint, attach ed as Exhibit 2.
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W h en actions involving a com m on q ue stion oflaw or factare pending before th e
court, itm ay order a jointh earing or trialofany or allth e m atters in is sue in th e
actions;it m ay order allth e actions consolidated;and it m ay m ak e such orders
concerning proce edings th ere in as m ay tend to avoid unnece s sary costs or delay.

In addition, pursuantto EDCR 2.50(a)(1), consolidation ofCase No. A-19 -807458-C w ith th e first

filed Guardians h ip cas e is proper becaus e :

M otions for consolidation oftw o orm ore cas e s m ustbe h eard by th e judge as s igned
to th e cas e firstcom m enced. Ifconsolidation is granted, th e consolidated cas e w ill
be h eard before th e judge ordering consolidation.

EDCR 2.50(a)(1)(em ph as is added).

Th e Nevada Suprem e Court h as noted th e s im ilarity betw een th e fede raland state rule

regarding consolidation and, accordingly, h as look ed to federaldecis ions interpreting th e federal

rule on consolidation. See, e.g., Marcuse v. Del Webb Communities, Inc., 123 Nev. 278, 286, 163

P.3d 462, 468 (2007)(noting th atNRCP42(a)and FRCP42(a)are identical). Courts h ave broad

discretion in deciding w h eth er to consolidate cas e s , Investors Research Co. v. U.S. Dist. Ct. for

Cent. of Cal., 877 F.2d 777, 777 (9 th Cir. 19 89 ), and th e th re s h old q ue stion is w h eth e r th e actions

involve com m on q ue stions oflaw or fact. NRCP42(a). If common questions of law or fact are

present, consolidation is warranted where, on balance, the savings of time and effort that

consolidation will produce are greater than any inconvenience, delay, confusion, or prejudice that

may result. Huene v. United States, 743 F.2d 703, 704 (9 th Cir. 19 84)(em ph as is added).

A. ALL FACTORS WEIGH IN FAVOR OF CONSOLIDATION.

Consolidation is undoubtedly w arranted and nece s sary. For starters , both cas e s involve

partie s w h o h ave appeared in th e guardians h ip cas e , nam ely, Rodney Yeom an, R ich ard Pow ell,

and Kandi Pow ell. Second, th e claim s as s erted in Cas e No. A-19 -807458-Care directly related to

is sue s th atare centralto th is guardians h ip action. Th ere is no argum entto sugge stth ateach caus e

of action in Cas e No. A-19 -807458-C is focus ed on th e Protected Person and aris e s out of a

com m on nucleus ofoperative facts . Th e entire pointofCase No. A-19 -807458-C w as to obtain

relief for civilw rongs inflicted againstth e Protected Person, w h ich is focus ed on th e Protected

Person’s h om e and bank accounts be ing tak en from h er w h ile s h e lack ed m entalcapacity. W h ile

originally th e filing of an A-cas e w as to stream line litigation, oppos ing couns elin filing a h ap-
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h azard counterclaim and th ird-party com plaint h as directly im plicated th e s e guardians h ip

proceedings to a pointw h ere logic dictate s th is Courth ere both cas e s .

In addition, Kim berly, on be h alf of th e Protected Person h as brough t caus e s of action

againstYeom an and Pow ellw h ich fallunder th e guardians h ip statute s and th is Court is better

e q uipped to pre s ide over such claim s . Th e sam e applie s to th e Yeom an and Pow ell’s recent

counterclaim in Cas e No. A-19 -807458-C, w h ich is a slas h and burn collateralattack on th is

Court’s prior decis ions in th e guardians h ip action. Specifically, Yeom an and Pow ellattem ptto

relitigate th e follow ing is sue s :

 Th e Guardian “forcibly took ”th e Protected Person prior to th e s e proce edings and
as a re sult“intentionally caus ed Yeom an em otionaldistre s s .”3

 Th e Guardian’s priorpow erofattorney overth e Protected Person w ere “notvalid.”4

 Th e Guardian ofth e Protected Person is “tre spas s ing”as a re sultofh e r staying in
th e KraftAvenue h om e th atw as w rongfully tak en from th e Protected Person for no
com pensation.5

 Th e Guardian h as prevented th e Protected Person from spending tim e w ith
Yeom an.6

 Th e Guardian h as “abus ed legalproce s s”in th e Guardians h ip cas e .7 Th is is th e
“abus e ofproce s s”caus e ofaction brough tagainstth e currentGuardian.

 Th e Guardian h as w ith h eld th e Protected Person form Yeom an and Yeom an now
sue s for “los s ofconsortium .”8

Allofth e s e is sue s h ave already been litigated and discus s ed atlength in th e Guardians h ip

cas e . W h ile notactionable, th e existence ofth e s e allegations create s com m on q ue stions oflaw and

fact. Yeom an, Rich ard, and Kandi attem pt to collaterally attack th e guardians h ip proce edings

3 Counterclaim and Th ird-Party Claim at¶¶31-38.

4 Id. at¶¶28-29 .

5 Id. at¶¶29 -35.

6 Id. at¶¶37-40.

7 Id. at¶¶44-48.

8 Id. at¶¶9 2-103.
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contrary to th is Court’s prior rulings and allof th e ir counter-claim s and th ird-party claim s are

directly related to events centralto th is guardians h ip.

Already, financialand m edicaldocum ents h ave been sough t and produced to th e

guardians h ip com pliance officer as s igned to th is cas e and th e reports from th atofficer im plicate

th e sam e facts and is sue s relevantto Case No. A-19 -807458-C (ch eck ing accounts , KraftAvenue

property paym ents , etc.). Th e Guardians h ip Com pliance officer h as furth er stated th atth is Court’s

attention s h ould be focus ed on th e w rongfultransfer ofth e KraftAvenue Property— w h ich is th e

sam e subjectofth e litigation in th e A-cas e . Additionally,couns elin both cas e s is identical, w h ich

m ak e s consolidation even m ore appropriate w h en it com e s to analyzing cost and tim e factors .

Th us , given th e com m onality oflaw and fact, both cas e s w illclearly involve th e exam ination of

th e sam e docum ents and depos itions ofth e sam e w itne s s e s during discovery. Consolidation w ill

also s erve to furth er avoid redundantm otions filed in tw o s eparate cas e s to be decided by tw o

differentjurists .

IV. CONCLUSION

Accordingly, Kim berly re spectfully req ue sts th atth is Courtenter an order, consolidating

No. A-19 -807458-C, w ith th e above -entitled m atter, pursuant to NRCP 42(a) and EDCR

2.50(a)(1).

Dated th is 25th day ofJune, 2020.
M ARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tom ich , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 8369
Jam e s A. Beck strom , Es q .
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas , Nevada 89 145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones, as
Guardian of the Person and
Estate of Kathleen June Jones
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I h ereby certify th at th e foregoing MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE w as subm itted

electronically for filing and/or s ervice w ith th e Eigh th JudicialDistrictCourton th e 25th day of

June, 2020. Electronic s ervice ofth e foregoing docum ents h allbe m ade in accordance w ith th e E-

Service Listas follow s :9

Ty E. Ke h oe , Es q .
KEH O E & ASSOCIATES

871 Coronado Center Drive, Ste . 200
H enderson, NV89 052

M atth ew C. Piccolo, Es q .
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES

2450 St. Ros e Pk w y., Ste. 210
H enderson, NV89 074

Laura Deete r, Es q .
Nedda Gh andi, Es q .

725 S. 8th Street, Ste . 100
Las Vegas , NV89 101

Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman

M aria L. Parra-Sandoval, Es q .
LEGALAID OFSOUTH ERN NEVADA

725 E. Ch arleston Blvd.
Las Vegas , NV89 104

Attorneys for Protected Person

Joh n P. M ich aelson, Es q .
M ICH AELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD.

2200 Paseo Verde Park w ay, Ste . 160
H enderson, NV89 052

Attorneys for Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons

/s/ Cheryl Becnel
An em ployee ofM arq uis Aurbach Coffing

9 Pursuantto EDCR 8.05(a), each party w h o subm its an E-Filed docum entth rough th e E-Filing System
cons ents to electronic s ervice in accordance w ith NRCP5(b)(2)(D).
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Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
gtomich@maclaw.com
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com

Attorneys for Kimberly Jones,
Guardian of Kathleen June Jones

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

KIMBERLY JONES, AS GUARDIAN OF THE
PERSON AND ESTATE OF KATHLEEN
JUNE JONES, a protected person,

Plaintiffs,

v.

RICHARD POWELL, an individual; KANDI
POWELL, an individual; RODNEY GERALD
YEOMAN, an individual; DOES I-X, inclusive;
and ROE CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive,

Defendants.

Case No.:
Dept. No.:

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

Exempt from Arbitration: NAR 3(A)
1. Amount in Controversy in Excess of

$50,000.00
2. Concerns Title to Real Property
3. Declaratory Relief Requested

Kimberly Jones, as Guardian of the Person and Estate of Kathleen June Jones by and

through her counsel of record, Geraldine Tomich, Esq. and James A. Beckstrom, Esq. of the law

firm of Marquis Aurbach Coffing, hereby complains as follows.

PARTIES

1. Kathleen June Jones (“June”) is a protected person residing in Clark County,

Nevada, represented by the guardian of her estate and person, Kimberly Jones (“Kimberly”).

2. Kimberly is an individual currently residing in Clark County, Nevada.

3. June resides with Kimberly at 277 Kraft Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada 89130 (the

“Kraft Avenue Property”).

A-19-807458-C
6

Case Number: A-19-807458-C

Electronically Filed
3/6/2020 4:01 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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4. Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerald”) is the husband of June and is an individual

residing in Clark County, Nevada.

5. Gerald has and continues to suffer from serious medical issues that have rendered

Gerald unfit to care for June without full time assistance.

6. Richard Powell (“Richard”) is an individual residing in Clark County, Nevada and

is the son in law of Gerald.

7. Kandi Powell (“Kandi”) is an individual residing in Clark County, Nevada and is

the daughter of Gerald.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

8. Venue is proper in the Eighth Judicial District Court in Clark County, Nevada,

pursuant to NRS 13.040 because (1) one or more of the Defendants reside in Clark County,

Nevada; and (2) the obligations, acts, abuses, and tortious conduct complained of herein were

incurred and committed, in whole or in part, within Clark County, Nevada.

9. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants, pursuant to NRS 14.065

because (1) Defendants’ activities and contacts in Nevada have been and continue to be so

substantial, continuous, and systematic that Defendants are deemed present in the forum; (2) the

obligations, acts, omissions, and tortious actions complained of herein were incurred and

committed, in whole or in part, in Clark County, Nevada, and thus, Defendants have had

sufficient minimum contacts with this forum such that the exercise of personal jurisdiction over

them will not offend traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES

10. June was born on January 20, 1937 and is presently 82 years old.

11. June has five children, which include Kimberly, Robyn Friedman (“Robyn”),

Donna Simmons (“Donna”), and Scott Simmons (“Scott”).

12. In 2002, June was engaged to Walter Tormala (“Walter”) where they resided

together at 6277 Kraft Avenue, Las Vegas, NV (the “Kraft Avenue” property).

1481



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Page 3 of 24

M
A

R
Q

U
IS

A
U

R
B

A
C

H
C

O
F

F
IN

G
1

00
0

1
P

ar
k

R
un

D
ri

v
e

L
as

V
eg

as
,

N
ev

ad
a

8
91

4
5

(7
02

)
3

82
-0

71
1

F
A

X
:

(7
0

2
)

38
2

-5
81

6

13. Walter had purchased the Kraft Avenue property for approximately $145,000.00

in 1996.

14. In 2004, Walter executed a quitclaim deed, transferring his interest in the Kraft

Avenue property to June as the sole owner.

15. On December 27, 2005, June executed a Durable Healthcare Power of Attorney,

in which she designated Kimberly as her attorney-in-fact.

16. On June 6, 2007, Walter passed away and June was left to reside in the Kraft

Avenue property where she continued to maintain all mortgage payments thereon.

17. In 2009, June married Gerald.

18. On October 24, 2012, June consulted an attorney and executed a Durable

Financial Power of Attorney, in which she designated Kimberly as her attorney-in-fact.

19. Gerald, Richard, and Kandi were aware of June’s Durable Financial Power of

Attorney and Health Care Power of Attorney since approximately 2016.

20. Since early 2016, June’s mobility, memory and cognition have been in steady

decline.

21. Following hip surgeries prior to 2016, June’s cognitive function was reduced to

the extent June stopped writing checks, managing her finances, grocery shopping, or performing

other routine daily tasks.

22. June’s medical records confirm that in early 2016 June expressed she was unable

to handle banking or major purchases.

23. June has not driven a car since approximately 2013.

24. From 2016 to present, June’s children, Gerald, Richard, and Kandi have

witnessed June’s inability to perform basic household tasks and severe cognitive impairment.

25. During this time period June was diagnosed was treated with medications to treat

cognitive decline, including but not limited to declines associated with advanced dementia.

26. During this time Gerald, Richard, and Kandi knew which medications June was

taking to treat cognitive impairments, dispensed those drugs to June, and/or assisted in the

delivery of those drugs to June.
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27. Since her marriage to Gerald, June and Gerald resided together at the Kraft

Avenue property.

28. In or about March of 2019, Gerald began having serious medical complications

which required him to be hospitalized and prohibited Gerald from being able to properly care for

June.

29. Around the time Gerald began having serious medical complications, Gerald’s

family, specifically Richard and Kandi assisted, paid for, or facilitated medical care for June.

30. On September 5, 2019, June's physician at the Luo Ruvo Center, Dr. Marwan

Sabbagh, certified that June suffers from degenerative neurological disorder resulting in

impairment of memory, judgment and other cognitive functions.

31. Dr. Marwan further found that June is not capable of handling her own affairs,

including medical, financial, and legal decisions, and requires a guardian.

32. Starting in approximately 2016, June was incompetent as a person who, by reason

of mental illness, mental deficiency, advanced age, disease, weakness of mind or any other

cause, is unable, without assistance, properly to manage and take care of herself or her property.

33. Starting in approximately 2016, June was unable to receive and evaluate

information or make or communicate decisions to such an extent that the person lacks the ability

to meet essential requirements for physical health, safety or self-care without appropriate

assistance. See NRS 159.019.

34. Pursuant to NRS 41.1395, June being over 60 years of age during the relevant

time period covering each allegation stated herein is an older person.

35. Pursuant to NRS 41.1395, June was a vulnerable person based on her lack of

mental competency, which was known to each named Defendant.

KIMBERLY AND HER SIBLINGS DISCOVER JUNE IS BEING FINANCIALLY
EXPLOITED

36. In or around March 2019, Kimberly and her siblings discovered the Kraft Avenue

Property had been “sold” on January 16, 2018 for $100,000 less than fair market value to

Richard and Kandi.
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37. When June’s daughters asked June about this, June was not aware her house was

sold and became distraught at the thought her home was no longer hers. Till present, June

believes she is the owner of the Kraft Avenue Property.

38. June did not receive cash for this “sale” and this $100,000 deficiency in value is

reflected on the Declaration of Value form that Richard prepared and recorded with the Clark

County Recorder’s Office along with the purported deed.

39. None of June’s bank accounts have received a single penny from the “sale” of the

Kraft Avenue property to Richard and Kandi.

40. Kimberly and her siblings further discovered that June, lacking any legal

competence, apparently “signed” a deed transferring the Kraft Avenue property to Richard

(which Richard prepared), but June maintained no recollection of agreeing to or signing such a

document.

41. Gerry knowing, he maintained no ownership interest in the Kraft Avenue Property

also participated in the fraudulent transfer of the Kraft Avenue Property by signing a “spousal

deed” disclaiming any interest in the Kraft Avenue Property.

42. All documents concerning the transfer of the Kraft Avenue Property were

prepared at the direction of Richard, Kandi, and Gerald who worked together to establish the

material terms of the transfer.

43. Richard and Kandi paid for the transfer documents pertaining to the Kraft Avenue

property to be drafted, recorded, and acknowledged.

44. Richard, Kandi, and Gerald were aware June had severe cognitive improvement,

could not manage her own finances, and had a financial power of attorney at the time the transfer

documents were prepared and signed.

45. Richard, Kandi, and Gerald never provided June independent legal counsel during

the time the Kraft Avenue property was transferred.

46. June continues to deny she signed a deed for the Kraft Avenue property and does

not recall any events surrounding the alleged transfer.
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47. In or about March 2019 or April 2019, Kimberly asked June if she transferred the

Kraft Avenue property and June was in utter disbelief that her home was transferred.

48. During the time in which the Kraft Avenue property was allegedly transferred,

June lacked any competency to enter into a contract, make informed decisions, or understand the

nature of her bounty.

49. During the time in which the Kraft Avenue property was sold and for the time

preceding the transfer, June was renting empty rooms in the Property for supplemental income.

50. Since obtaining title to the Property, Richard has caused June’s supplemental

rental income to seize.

51. Each time June is informed the Kraft Avenue Property was deeded away from

her, she becomes physically sick and mentally distraught.

52. During the time in which the Kraft Avenue property was transferred to Richard,

Richard was a “Related Person” as defined within NRS 155.0945.

53. During the time in which the Kraft Avenue property was transferred to Richard,

June was a “Dependent Adult” as defined within NRS 155.0937.

54. June was not provided an “independent attorney” at or around the time in which

the Kraft Avenue property was transferred to Richard as defined in NRS 155.0937.

55. Richard materially participated in the material provisions of the transfer

instrument (the deed) or arranged for such an instrument to be created by an agent acting under

his authority.

56. When Kimberly confronted Richard about the sale of the Property, Richard

promised accountings and an explanation, but since has failed to provide any viable explanation

or accounting.

57. Richard knowing June's condition, took advantage of June, and exploited and

unduly influenced June to sell the house to Richard and/or his wife Kandi.

58. Upon information and belief, Gerald, Richard, and Kandi together worked

together to take control of June’s finances in order to benefit themselves to the detriment of June.
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59. Accordingly, Kimberly made a complaint and initiated an elder abuse

investigation with Nevada Adult Protective Services (“APS”) and with the Las Vegas

Metropolitan Police Department (“LVMPD”) elder abuse detail.

60. Since illegally obtaining ownership to the Kraft Avenue property, Richard has

attempted to evict Kimberly (and June) from the Property.

JUNE’S FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS ARE RAIDED.

61. After the sale of the Kraft Avenue property was discovered, Kimberly began

reviewing June’s bank accounts with various financial institutions.

62. Gerald and Richard (despite neither having signatory authority) consistently wrote

checks from June’s separate checking account for various items and even removed June from her

marital checking accounts at Chase Bank (depriving June of her share of at least $40,000).

63. On or around September 4, 2019, Richard utilized June’s account to extract up to

$1,000 in cash from an ATM machine without authority.

64. Richard and Gerald have never been signatories on June’s financial account

relevant to the September 4, 2019 cash withdrawal.

65. In or about 2003, June and Kimberly opened a joint account at Bank of America

in which June deposited her social security income and from which her bills were paid. June

additionally deposited rents she received from the Anaheim Property.

66. Kimberly has discovered that a number of checks were written by Gerald and/or

Richard from June and Kimberly’s joint Bank of America Account, despite the fact that neither

Gerald, nor Richard has signatory authority on the account.

67. On or about November 2017, Gerald and Richard removed June from her marital

accounts she shared with Gerald at Chase Bank, and concurrently made Richard a joint-owner on

such accounts.

68. Upon information and belief, Gerald and Richard have also withheld and/or

utilized tens of thousands of dollars in gift cards provided to June by her daughter Robyn for

their own personal benefit.
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69. At the time June was removed from the marital accounts, there was an

approximate balance of $41,000, of which June maintained a community property interest.

70. Upon information and belief, Richard has likewise unduly influenced and

exploited his father-in-law, committed these acts without his father-in-law's knowledge, or

conspired with his father-in-law to accomplish this act.

71. Richard’s actions when combined with Gerald’s physical and mental capacity or

lack thereof, presents actionable legal claims between Gerald and Richard, which are non-

waivable conflicts of interest.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
CONVERSION

(Against all Defendants)

72. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

73. Defendants wrongfully obtained, gained, and utilized June’s assets (money within

bank accounts, real property, and personal property) in a manner unknown, improper and

unauthorized manner.

74. Specifically, Richard, Kandi, and Gerald withdrew money belonging to June from

June’s bank account in September 2019 and on other dates throughout 2018-2019.

75. Richard, Kandi, and Gerald also wrote checks from June’s accounts for their own

personal benefit, including dozens of checks from Gerald to his own bank accounts.

76. Upon information and belief, Richard, Kandi, and Gerald are also in the

possession of a motor vehicle and recreational vehicle owned by June.

77. Defendants intentionally exercised dominion and control over June’s personal

property by transferring and utilizing June’s funds and gift cards for their own personal expense

and benefit.

78. Defendants continue to wrongfully withhold June’s money and gift cards, which

are her sole and separate personal property.
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79. Defendants have refused to return the money, gift cards, or vehicles identified

above.

80. Defendants knew and/or should have known that June lacked the cognitive

function and capacity to understand the nature of her bounty, to enter into a contract, or make

informed decisions during the time period of the above stated acts.

81. Defendants knew June was an older person pursuant to NRS 41.1395, as she is

over 60 years of age and was similarly a vulnerable person based on her lack of mental

competency.

82. Specifically, Defendants without authority withdrew money from June’s financial

institutions and fraudulently induced June, who lacked capacity, to remove herself from her joint

checking accounts.

83. Defendants’ abuse and control of the above stated personal property has deprived

June of the financial benefit and enjoyment from all the above stated property.

84. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' conversion of June’s property,

June has been damaged in excess of $15,000 plus interest thereon, in an amount to be determined

at trial.

85. Defendants above stated actions were done with a conscious disregard for June’s

rights and with malice, intended to harm June financially, thus warranting the imposition of

punitive damages.

86. It has become necessary for Kimberly to retain the services of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing to prosecute this action, and Kimberly on behalf of June is entitled to an award of

attorney's fees, costs and interest, pursuant to Nevada law.

87. As a result of Defendants reckless, fraudulent, oppressive, and malicious conduct,

June is entitled to statutory attorney fees, costs, and double damages pursuant to NRS 41.1395.

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
RETURN OF PROPERTY OF PROTECTED PERSON PURSUANT TO NRS 159.305

(Against all Defendants)

88. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

89. To the extent NRS 159.305 and/or NRS 159.315 is a remedy rather than a cause

of action, Plaintiff pleads as such.

90. June is a protected person under NRS 159.305.

91. NRS 159.305 empowers a guardian of a protected person to petition the court that

“(a) That a person has or is suspected to have concealed, converted to his or her own use,

conveyed away or otherwise disposed of any money, good, chattel or effect of the protected

person; or (b) That the person has in his or her possession or knowledge any deed, conveyance,

bond, contract or other writing which contains evidence of, or tends to disclose the right, title or

interest of the protected person or proposed protected person in or to, any real or personal

property, or any claim or demand, the judge may cause the person to be cited to appear before

the district court to answer, upon oath, upon the matter of the petition.”

92. Pursuant to NRS 159.315 if the court finds, after examination of a person cited

pursuant to NRS 159.305, that the person has committed an act within NRS 159.305, “the court

may order the person to return the asset or the value of the asset to the guardian of the estate; or

the court may order the person to return the asset or provide information concerning the location

of the asset to the guardian of the estate.”

93. Pursuant to NRS 159.315(3) an order of the court pursuant to NRS 159.315(1) is

prima facie evidence of the right of the proposed protected person or the estate of the protected

person to the asset described and any judgment recovered therein must be double the value of the

asset, and damages in addition thereof equal to the value of such property.

94. Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald have wrongfully retained real and personal

property belonging to June, including but not limited to money, gift cards, automobiles, the Kraft
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Avenue Property, and other personal property expected to be discovered upon a further financial

audit of June’s finances.

95. It has become necessary for Kimberly to retain the services of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing to prosecute this action, and Kimberly on behalf of June is entitled to an award of

attorney's fees, costs and interest, pursuant to Nevada law.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
INTENTIONAL MISREPRESENTATION / FRAUDULENT INDUCEMENT

(Against all Defendants)

96. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

97. Upon information and belief, Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald conspired with one

another to make knowingly false representations to June during a time in which they knew or

should have known June lacked the requisite mental capacity to enter into a contract (transfer the

Kraft Avenue property).

98. Upon information and belief, these aforementioned false representations were

presented to June as a superior financial option to induce June to sign over the Kraft Avenue

Property to Richard and Kandi.

99. Upon information and belief, June was falsely assured that the transfer of her

Property was for fair market value, when Richard, Kandi, and Gerald knew it was not.

100. Upon information and belief, June was not informed as to the contents of the

document she was signing (the deed), and was told the document related to something other than

the transfer of the Kraft Avenue property.

101. Had June maintained the requisite mental capacity or been presented with the true

value of the Kraft Avenue property, the pitfalls of transferring the property, or that the Property

would no longer owned by her, June would not have entered into any agreement to transfer the

Property.

/ / /

/ / /
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102. Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald falsely represented to June that she was being

fairly compensated for the transfer of the Kraft Avenue property, when Richard, Kandi, and

Gerald knew the transfer of the Kraft Avenue Property was $100,000 or more below fair market

value.

103. Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald falsely represented to June that she would receive

money if she sold the Kraft Avenue property.

104. Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald intended to induce June to transfer the Kraft

Avenue property to Richard to benefit them financially.

105. Richard, Kandi, and Gerald knew Kimberly was June’s financial power of

attorney and that June had been unable to make financial decisions without assistance for years,

but intentionally refused to notify Kimberly, or effectuate the transfer of the Kraft Avenue

property with Kimberly.

106. Upon information and belief, Richard, Kandi, and Gerald working with one

another, falsely presented themselves to June’s above described financial institutions (Bank of

America and Chase Bank) and without authority withdrew substantial funds from June’s

accounts.

107. June, nor Kimberly authorized the withdraw of any funds from these accounts and

to the extent Richard, Kandi, or Gerald contend otherwise, such authority was procured through

knowingly false representations, including but not limited to false statements that the money was

necessary to pay June’s expenses and false statements that the money was need to pay for June’s

rental property in California.

108. June, as an incapacitated person relied on Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald in

signing the deed to the Kraft Avenue property to Richard and providing any authority to

withdraw funds from her bank accounts.

109. The misrepresentations by Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald were knowingly false,

not in the best interest of June, and designed to extract money from June for their own benefit.

/ / /

/ / /
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110. Upon information and belief, Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald made false

representations to financial institutions on behalf of June in order to remove June from her

account at Chase Bank.

111. June has suffered extensive damages as a result of the above stated fraud, as she

has been deprived of the equity in the Kraft Avenue property, the continued increase in value of

the Kraft Avenue property, her ability to obtain a mortgage on the Kraft Avenue property, and

deprived of funds from her financial accounts which she requires for the support of her health

and maintenance.

112. For each of the above stated instances of fraud, Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald

falsely represented to June that each of the described actions were to advance June’s financial

benefit—a false statement.

113. Upon information and belief, Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald knowingly provided

June with false information regarding her finances with the intent of inducing June (in a

diminished capacity) to rely on those representations.

114. But for the misrepresentations stated above, June would have never taken any

action to transfer of the Kraft Avenue property or provide Richard, Kandi, or Gerald access to

her bank accounts.

115. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' intentional misrepresentation and

fraudulent inducement, June has been damaged in excess of $15,000 plus interest thereon, in an

amount to be determined at trial.

116. Defendants above stated actions were done with a conscious disregard for June’s

rights and with malice, intended to harm June financially, thus warranting the imposition of

punitive damages.

117. It has become necessary for Kimberly to retain the services of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing to prosecute this action, and Kimberly on behalf of June is entitled to an award of

attorney's fees, costs and interest, pursuant to Nevada law.

118. As a result of Defendants reckless, fraudulent, oppressive, and malicious conduct,

June is entitled to statutory attorney fees, costs, and double damages pursuant to NRS 41.1395.
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FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
CIVIL CONSPIRACY

(Against all Defendants)

119. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

120. Richard, Kandi, and Gerald, by acting in concert, intended to accomplish the

unlawful objective of depriving June of her personal property, retirement monies, bank accounts,

the Kraft Avenue property and other assets in Defendants' custody and care.

121. Specifically, Richard, Kandi, and Gerald discussed, planned, and agreed to terms

of the claimed Kraft Avenue purchase price, paid to have material terms of transfer documents

concerning the Kraft Avenue property drafted, facilitated, and arranged for June to sign the

transfer documents—all the while knowing June suffered from severe cognitive impairment,

could not make financial decisions on her own, and intentionally leaving June’s financial power

of attorney in the dark regarding the claimed transfer.

122. In regards to the Kraft Avenue transfer, Richard, Kandi, and Gerald further

discussed a less than fair market value purchase price as well as their affirmative plan to not

transfer any money to June for the purchase price of the Kraft Avenue property—which

occurred.

123. After discussing the terms of the transfer for the Kraft Avenue property,

Defendants acted on their discussions and presented knowingly false documents to June,

specifically

124. Gerald pressured and misrepresented facts to June regarding the Kraft Avenue

property at the direction and order of Richard and Kandi.

125. Gerald took affirmative actions at the direction of Richard and Kandi when he

agreed to sign a spousal deed disclaiming any interest in the Kraft Avenue property, knowing he

never maintained any such interest.

/ / /

/ / /
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126. For each of the stated instances of fraud, conversion, breach of food faith and fair

dealing, and breach of fiduciary duty plead herein, Plaintiff asserts that Richard, Kandi, and/or

Gerald acted in concert with one another to accomplish each stated unlawful objective.

127. Richard, Kandi, and Gerald consulted, agreed, and together withdrew large sums

of money in excess of $25,000 from June’s personal bank accounts and joint accounts to benefit

themselves. These transfers include numerous checks written by Gerald to himself in which he

gave to Richard and/or Kandi or siphoned to his own personal accounts.

128. To date, Gerald, Richard, and Kandi continue to work together to retain the

wrongfully withheld money from June’s bank account, the Kraft Avenue property, and upon

information and belief vehicles belonging to June.

129. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' concerted tortious actions

described herein, June has been damaged in excess of $15,000 plus interest thereon, in an

amount to be determined at trial.

130. Defendants above stated actions were done with a conscious disregard for June’s

rights and with malice, intended to harm June financially, thus warranting the imposition of

punitive damages.

131. It has become necessary for Kimberly to retain the services of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing to prosecute this action, and Kimberly on behalf of June is entitled to an award of

attorney's fees, costs and interest, pursuant to Nevada law.

132. As a result of Defendants reckless, fraudulent, oppressive, and malicious conduct,

June is entitled to statutory attorney fees, costs, and double damages pursuant to NRS 41.1395.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
ELDER ABUSE PURSUANT TO NRS 41.1395.

(Against all Defendants)

133. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

134. To the extent NRS 41.1395 is a remedy or enhancement of penalty, Plaintiff

pleads as such.
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135. June is an “older person” pursuant to NRS 41.1395, as she is over 60 years of age.

136. At all times at issue to this litigation, June has been incompetent as a person who,

by reason of mental illness, mental deficiency, advanced age, disease, weakness of mind or any

other cause, is unable, without assistance, properly to manage and take care of herself or her

property.

137. Pursuant to NRS 41.1395, June being over 60 years of age during the relevant

time period covering each allegation stated herein is a person subject to the protections of NRS

41.1395.

138. Pursuant to NRS 41.1395, June was a vulnerable person based on her lack of

mental competency, which was known to each named Defendant.

139. Defendants were in a position of trust and confidence to June, whereby June was

dependent on Defendants for food, personal hygiene, medication, and transportation.

140. Defendants knew June had been diagnosed with severe cognitive impairment in

2016 and was dependent on Defendants for bathing, grooming, and assistance with her

medications, including her dementia medication.

141. Defendants together exploited June to obtain control of her finances and her

person by deceiving and unduly influencing June in regards to the above stated transfer

concerning the Kraft Avenue property, personal bank accounts, and the above stated personal

property.

142. Defendants working together to accomplish the unlawful exploitation stated

above, pressured June into deeding away the Kraft Avenue house in an effort to benefit

themselves financially.

143. Each of the above stated actions were set in motion with the intent to permanently

deprive and remove June from the rights, benefits, ownership, and possession of her money, the

Kraft Avenue property, gift cards, and vehicles as more fully stated in the preceding paragraphs.

144. To date, June continues to be deprived of her money, the Kraft Avenue property,

and other personal property.

/ / /
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145. June has suffered a loss of money and property as result of financial exploitation

as further detailed above.

146. Richard, Kandi, and Gerald were all in a position of trust and confidence with

June, as they were her close family members who represented they were acting in the best

interest of June.

147. June relied on the representations of Richard, Kandi, and Gerald that they were

acting in her best interest and trusted confidants.

148. As more fully described in the preceding paragraphs, Defendants have converted

June’s money, assets, and property (real and personal) to June’s detriment.

149. The above stated conduct constitutes financial exploitation of an older person

pursuant to NRS 41.1395.

150. As a result of Defendants financial exploitation of June, June has suffered severe

mental anguish and distress.

151. Pursuant to NRS 41.1395, June is entitled to two times the actual damages

incurred.

152. As a result of Defendants reckless, fraudulent, oppressive, and malicious conduct,

June is entitled to statutory attorney fees, costs, and double damages pursuant to NRS 41.1395.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
DECLARATORY RELIEF

(Against all Defendants)

153. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

154. NRS 30.040 authorizes this Court to obtain a declaration of rights to any written

contract or deed in which a dispute exists.

155. A dispute over the deed transferring the Kraft Avenue property from June to

Richard exists, wherein June, through her Guardian Kimberly, disputes the validity of the deed

and asserts the deed was obtained by way of undue influence, fraud, or lack of competency.
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156. NRS 155.097 and all applicable statutes associated therein state that any transfer

instrument made through the product of fraud, duress, or undue influence is void, with the person

responsible for such conduct bearing the cost of the proceedings, including all reasonable

attorney’s fees and costs.

157. Pursuant to NRS 155.097 the transfer of the Kraft Avenue property is presumed

void.

158. A dispute further exists as to the authority of Richard, Kandi, and/or Gerald had to

remove June from her marital accounts at Chase Bank and to withdraw money from June’s Bank

of America account.

159. June therefore seeks a declaration from this Court as follows:

a. Declaring June as the sole owner of the Kraft Avenue property;

b. Declaring a rebuttable presumption that the Kraft Avenue property was

transferred by way of undue influence including all rights and remedies available under NRS

155.097;

c. Declare Richard lacks any legal right or title to the Kraft Avenue property;

d. Declare June’s wrongfully diminished bank accounts which suffered

unauthorized monetary withdraws from Defendants are June’s separate property pursuant to

NRS 123.130;

e. Declare the removal of June from the Chase Bank account invalid; and

f. Declare that Richard, Kandi, and Gerald had no right or authority to access

June’s Bank of America account.

160. Such declarations will resolve the disputes of the aforementioned parties.

161. Plaintiff respectfully request that this Honorable Court resolve and declare the

rights of the parties herein.

162. As a direct and proximate result of the actions described herein which forced this

declaratory action, June has been damaged in excess of $15,000 plus interest thereon, in an

amount to be determined at trial.
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163. It has become necessary for Kimberly to retain the services of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing to prosecute this action, and Kimberly on behalf of June is entitled to an award of

attorney's fees, costs and interest, pursuant to Nevada law, including but not limited to NRS

155.097 and NRS 159.315.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY AND AIDING AND

ABETTING BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY

(Against all Defendants)

164. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

165. Gerald as the husband of June has and continues to owe June a fiduciary duty to

act in a just, equitable, and transparent fashion.

166. As a fiduciary, Gerald was required to make a full disclosure of all material facts

within his knowledge in anything related to marital affairs, including the finances of the

marriage.

167. Gerald, through the assistance of his conspirators as more fully described in the

preceding paragraphs all which are incorporated by reference, Richard and Kandi, took

affirmative action to breach each of these above stated fiduciary duties by (1) removing June

from her marital accounts without permission, notice, or discussion; (2) removing June’s interest

in the Kraft Avenue Property or facilitating the removal through encouragement, deceit, and

misrepresentation; and (3) usurping funds of June (including gift cards) without her permission

or knowledge.

168. As trusted a trusted confidant and caretaker of June, Gerald owed June a fiduciary

duty not to pilfer, control, and/or take from June’s accounts, property, assets, and money.

169. Richard, Gerald, and Kandi were aware June relied on them to act in her best

interest, including her financial interests and Richard, Gerald, and Kandi affirmatively

represented that at all times relevant to this case they were serving in the best interest of June.

170. Defendants through their conspiracy breached that fiduciary duty by wrongfully

gaining access and obtaining assets, monies, property, and real property of June.
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171. Richard and Kandi aided and abetted the above described breaches of fiduciary

duties to June by knowingly inducing or rendering substantial assistance to Gerald in committing

the acts described herein.

172. Richard, Kandi, and Gerald collectively represented they were acting in the best

interest of June by representing the transfer of the Kraft Avenue property was in June’s best

interest, when they knew that representation was false.

173. The substantial assistance of Richard and Kandi included among other things,

assisting Gerald in transferring funds from June’s separate property bank accounts and removing

June from her joint checking account with Gerald.

174. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' concerted tortious actions

described herein, June has been damaged in excess of $15,000 plus interest thereon, in an

amount to be determined at trial.

175. It has become necessary for Kimberly to retain the services of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing to prosecute this action, and Kimberly on behalf of June is entitled to an award of

attorney's fees, costs and interest, pursuant to Nevada law.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
RECISSION OF INSTRUMENT / QUIET TITLE

(Against Richard and Kandi)

176. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

177. Pursuant Nev. Rev. Stat. § 40.010, this Court is empowered to declare the rights

and legal relations of the parties in this matter.

178. A justiciable controversy exists between the Parties as both June and Richard

have made conflicting claims to title of the Property, wherein Richard contends he is the lawful

owner of the Property and June, through her guardian contends to the contrary.

179. June is the legal and equitable owner of the Property, having received the

Property from her prior husband as her sole and separate property.
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180. Richard’s deed from June for the Kraft Avenue property as a matter of law must

be rescinded based on the above stated fraud, undue influence, and June’s lack of capacity.

181. Pursuant to NRS 155.097, the transfer of the Kraft Avenue property from June to

Richard was the product of fraud, duress, and/or undue influence and is therefore void.

182. Pursuant to NRS 155.097 the transfer of the Kraft Avenue property from June to

Richard is presumed void as a matter of law.

183. Pursuant to NRS 155.097, Richard “shall bear the costs of the proceedings,

including, without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees.”

184. During the time in which the Kraft Avenue property was allegedly transferred,

June lacked any competency to enter into a contract, make informed decisions, or understand the

nature of her bounty.

185. Upon information and belief, Richard materially participated in the drafting of

material provisions of the transfer instrument (the deed) or arranged for such an instrument to be

created by an agent acting under his authority.

186. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' concerted tortious actions

described herein, June has been damaged in excess of $15,000 plus interest thereon, in an

amount to be determined at trial.

187. It has become necessary for Kimberly to retain the services of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing to prosecute this action, and Kimberly on behalf of June is entitled to an award of

attorney's fees, costs and interest, pursuant to Nevada law (NRS 155.097).

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
TORTIOUS BREACH OF THE IMPLIED COVENANT OF

GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING

(Against all Defendants)

188. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

189. Defendants' fraudulently misrepresented their intentions, designs and activities to

wrongfully obtain the property, money, and accounts of June.
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190. In addition to Defendants’ fraudulent misrepresentations in connection with the

withdraw and transfer of money from June’s bank accounts and the transfer of the Kraft Avenue

property, every contract in Nevada includes the covenant to deal and bargain in good faith.

191. The transfer of the Kraft Avenue property, specifically the deed in favor of

Richard and Kandi constituted a contract, while although challenged, carries with it the duty of

good faith and fair dealing.

192. The transfer of the Kraft Avenue property was effectuated through the agreement

of each named Defendant who collectively prepared and contemplated the transaction to the

detriment of June.

193. Defendants at all times relevant to this case maintained a special relationship with

June, based on their position of trust and confidence.

194. Defendants intentional acts to deprive June of the benefit of the proclaimed

bargain in selling the Kraft Avenue property constitutes perfidious misconduct.

195. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' concerted tortious actions

described herein, June has been damaged in excess of $15,000 plus interest thereon, in an

amount to be determined at trial.

196. Defendants above stated actions were done with a conscious disregard for June’s

rights and with malice, intended to harm June financially, thus warranting the imposition of

punitive damages.

197. Defendant’s above stated actions constitute elder abuse which mandates the

imposition of treble damages and attorney’s fees.

198. It has become necessary for Kimberly to retain the services of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing to prosecute this action, and Kimberly on behalf of June is entitled to an award of

attorney's fees, costs and interest, pursuant to Nevada law.

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /
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TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS

(Against all Defendants)

199. Kimberly realleges and incorporates by reference each allegation contained

above, as if they were fully set forth herein.

200. Gerald and Richard having intentionally withheld June’s property from her, to wit

the Kraft Avenue Property and June’s separate property (money) and after being informed of

June’s status as a protected person constitutes extreme and outrageous conduct.

201. The affirmative actions of each named Defendant in working together to

fraudulently transfer the Kraft Avenue property from June for no consideration further

constitutes extreme and outrageous conduct which transcends all bounds of societal decency.

202. Defendants’ wrongful retention of the above stated property constitute abuse of an

older person, protected person, and vulnerable person as defined by NRS 41.1395, as it was an

intentional action of inflicting psychological and emotional anguish, and distress on June.

203. June has suffered severe and extreme emotional distress as a result of being

deprived of her personal property (money) and her beloved Kraft Avenue property, this distress

has manifested itself in physical symptoms of uncontrolled defecation, anxiety, and depression.

204. But for Defendants’ intentional acts to keep June’s property from her, June would

not have suffered the above described injuries.

205. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' concerted tortious actions

described herein, June has been damaged in excess of $15,000 plus interest thereon, in an

amount to be determined at trial.

206. Defendants above stated actions were done with a conscious disregard for June’s

rights and with malice, intended to harm June financially, thus warranting the imposition of

punitive damages.

207. It has become necessary for Kimberly to retain the services of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing to prosecute this action, and Kimberly on behalf of June is entitled to an award of

attorney's fees, costs and interest, pursuant to Nevada law.
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WHEREFORE, Kimberly on behalf of the protected person, in addition to the relief

stated herein prays for the following relief:

1. For an award of damages in excess of $15,000.00;

2. For statutory attorneys’ fees and costs, including post-judgment fees and costs

pursuant to Nevada law, including but not limited to NRS 155.097, NRS 159.315, NRS 18.010;

and NRS 41.1395;

3. For an award of attorney fees as special damages, subject to supplementation;

4. Pre and post judgment interest;

5. For recission of the deed transferring the Kraft Avenue Property;

6. For declaratory judgment as stated above and an order quieting title;

7. Punitive damages against Defendants;

8. Enhanced damages pursuant to NRS 41.1395 and NRS 159.315;

9. Interest on each attorney fee and cost invoice paid from the date of payment

through the date of collection; and

10. For any further relief as the Court deems to be just and proper.

Dated this 5th day of March, 2020.
MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
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KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 
TY E. KEHOE, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 006011 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Telephone: (702) 837-1908 
Facsimile: (702) 837-1932 
TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com 
 

  Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
  Nevada Bar No. 14331 
  PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 
  8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150  
  Las Vegas, NV 89123 
  Tel: (702) 630-5030 
  Fax: (702) 944-6630 
  matt@piccololawoffices.com 
 
Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA  

  
KIMBERLY JONES, AS GUARDIAN OF THE 
PERSON AND ESTATE OF KATHLEEN JUNE 
JONES, a protected person, 
 
                                        Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
RICHARD POWELL, an individual; KANDI 
POWELL, an individual; RODNEY GERALD 
YEOMAN, an individual; DOES I-X, inclusive; and 
ROE CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive, 
 
                                       Defendants. 
 

CASE NO. A-19-807458-C 
DEPT. NO. 6 
 
ANSWER, COUNTERCLAIMS, AND THIRD 
PARTY CLAIMS 
 
 

RICHARD POWELL, KANDI POWELL,  
  Counter-Claimants, 
vs. 
 
KIMBERLY JONES, AS GUARDIAN OF THE 
PERSON AND ESTATE OF KATHLEEN JUNE 
JONES, a protected person, 
 
  Counter-Defendant. 
 

 

RICHARD  POWELL, KANDI POWELL, 
RODNEY GERALD YEOMAN, 
 
  Third Party Claimants, 
vs. 
 
KIMBERLY JONES, an individual, and DEAN 
LOGGANS, an individual; 
 
  Third Party Defendant. 
 

 

Case Number: A-19-807458-C

Electronically Filed
6/22/2020 4:31 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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ANSWER 

Richard Powell, Kandi Powell, and Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), husband of Kathleen 

June Jones (“June”), by and through their counsel Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. and Matthew C. Piccolo, 

Esq., hereby answer the First Amended Complaint (“Complaint”) filed by Plaintiff as follows.  

Anything not specifically admitted herein is deemed denied. 

1.  Defendants are without sufficient knowledge to admit or deny the allegations 

contained in Paragraph(s) 2, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 18, 22, 25, 30, 31, 37, 43, 46, 47, 

51, 59, 61, 64, 65, 66, 69, 89, 134, 155, 158, 159, 160, 161. 

2.  Defendants admit the allegations contained in Paragraph(s) 1, 3, 4, 6, 7, 11, 17, 23, 

29, 45. 

3.  Defendants repeat and reallege the relevant answers in relation to Paragraph(s) 72, 88, 

96, 119, 133, 153, 164, 176, 188, 199.  

4.  Defendants state that the allegations in the following Paragraph(s) are simply 

Plaintiff’s interpretation of the law, and the law will be decided by the Court, and 

therefore Defendants deny the same: 8, 9, 34, 52, 53, 54, 90, 91, 92, 93, 135, 137, 154, 

156, 165, 166, 168, 177, 178, 191, 193. 

5.  Defendants deny all remaining allegations contained in the Complaint. 

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES 

Defendants hereby assert the following affirmative defenses: 

1.  Plaintiff’s claims are barred by estoppel. 

2.  Plaintiff’s claims are barred by waiver. 

3.  Plaintiff’s claims are barred by the Plaintiff’s failure to mitigate the damages. 

4.  Plaintiff’s claims are barred by the doctrine of laches. 

5.  Plaintiff’s claims are barred by the doctrine of unclean hands. 
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6.  Plaintiff fails to state a claim upon which relief may be granted. 

7.  Plaintiff’s own negligence and/or wrongful conduct, and not the alleged wrongful 

conduct of the Defendants, was a substantial contributing factor in proximately 

causing the events complained of and the alleged resulting injuries and/or damages, if 

any, that Plaintiff may have suffered. 

8.  Plaintiff’s damages, if any, were caused by the acts and/or omissions of third parties 

over which Defendants had no control.  

9.  Plaintiff was aware of any and all actions taken by Defendants, including those actions 

by Defendants which Plaintiff alleges were wrongful, and thus Plaintiff waived or 

ratified the same. 

10. Plaintiff’s claims are barred by payment as Defendants have provided full satisfaction 

to Plaintiff of any and all amounts owed by Defendants to Plaintiff. 

11. Plaintiff’s claims are barred by fraud, in that Plaintiff’s allegations are not based in 

reality, but are instead designed to harass Defendants. 

12. Plaintiff did not verify her Amended Complaint. 

13. Plaintiff’s claims do not meet the requirements of NRS 41.1395 and, thus, that statute 

does not apply. 

14. NRS 155 is a probate statute and, thus, does not apply to Plaintiff’s claims because 

June Jones is not deceased. 

15. NRS 159 is a guardianship statute and June was not a protected person at the time of 

the relevant allegations in the Complaint. 

16. The Court lacks subject matter jurisdiction over this matter. 

17. Plaintiff has failed to plead her claims with particularity, as required, and, thus, they 

are barred. 
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18. Any claims for damages which Plaintiff has against Defendants, if valid, are offset by 

the claims which Defendants have against Plaintiff. 

19. Plaintiff’s claims, and each of them, are barred as a result of an accord and satisfaction. 

20. To the extent necessary and appropriate, Defendants incorporate by reference the 

affirmative defenses outlined in N.R.C.P. 8(c). 

21. All possible affirmative defenses may not have been alleged herein, insofar as 

sufficient facts were not available after reasonable inquiry upon the filing of 

Defendants’ Answer, and therefore Defendants reserve the right to amend the Answer 

to the Complaint to allege additional Affirmative Defenses if subsequent investigation 

so warrants. 

 WHEREFORE, Defendants respectfully request the following relief: 

a.  For dismissal of Plaintiff’s claims against Defendants, and that they take 

nothing thereby; 

b.  For costs of suit incurred herein; 

c.  For reasonable attorney’s fees and costs; and 

d.  For such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and equitable. 

DATED this 22nd day of June, 2020.  KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 

/s/ Ty Kehoe                                                  
Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Attorney for Defendants 
 
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 

/s/ Matthew C. Piccolo                                  
Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123 
Attorney for Defendants 
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COUNTER CLAIMS 

Richard Powell (“Dick”), Kandi Powell (“Kandi”), and Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), 

husband of Kathleen June Jones (“June”), by and through their counsel Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. and 

Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq, hereby counter claim and allege against Plaintiff, (“Counter-

Defendant”), as follows: 

COMMON FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

1. Counter-Defendant Kimberly Jones, is an individual who at all times herein 

mentioned was a resident of Clark County, Nevada, or consented to jurisdiction herein. 

2. Counter-Claimants Richard Powell, Kandi Powell, and Rodney Gerald Yeoman 

are individuals who at all times herein mentioned were residents of Clark County, Nevada. 

3. Venue is proper in the Eighth Judicial District Court in Clark County, Nevada, 

pursuant to NRS 13.040 because (1) the Counter-Defendant resides in Clark County, Nevada; 

and (2) the obligations, acts, abuses, and tortious conduct complained of herein were incurred and 

committed, in whole or in part, within Clark County, Nevada. 

4. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Counter-Defendant, pursuant to NRS 

14.065 because (1) Counter-Defendant’s activities and contacts in Nevada have been and 

continue to be so substantial, continuous, and systematic that Counter-Defendant is deemed 

present in the forum; (2) the obligations, acts, omissions, and tortious actions complained of 

herein were incurred and committed, in whole or in part, in Clark County, Nevada, and thus, 

Counter-Defendant has had sufficient minimum contacts with this forum such that the exercise 

of personal jurisdiction over them will not offend traditional notions of fair play and substantial 

justice. 

5. Dick and Kandi have provided hundreds of thousands of dollars of value to June 

and Gerry in travel, cars, payment of medical bills, payment of credit card bills, and more. 
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6. In January 2018, June knowingly and freely agreed to sell to Dick, Gerry’s son-

in-law, her real property located at 6277 Kraft Avenue in Las Vegas, NV (“Kraft House”). 

7. In exchange, Dick and Kandi paid off June’s mortgage on the Kraft House in the 

approximate amount of $140,000. 

8. June was interested in having the mortgage expense eliminated. 

9. June was fully informed about the Kraft House transfer. 

10. June was mentally competent at the time of the sale and understood what she was 

doing. 

11. June signed a deed in the presence of a third-party notary who was comfortable 

with her mental competency and with her signing the deed on her own. 

12. June subsequently signed documents with her bank officers who also believed she 

was competent to sign such documents. 

13. The Kraft House sale was publicly recorded with the Clark County Recorder in 

January 2018. 

14. Kimberly was imputed with actual knowledge of the Kraft House sale as a result 

of the publicly recorded document. 

15. Kimberly was a signer on June’s bank account and thus had access to that bank 

account, and could have seen that June stopped making the mortgage payments on the Kraft 

House in January 2018. 

16. If Kimberly was properly acting as June’s power of attorney, as Kimberly claims, 

then she should have expressed concern about June not making the necessary mortgage payments 

on the Kraft House. 

17. Kimberly did not actually perform any actions as June’s power of attorney at any 

time prior to mid-2019. 
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18. In late 2018, Kimberly and her sisters discovered that June had sold the Kraft 

House to Dick and Kandi and have since done everything in their power to disrupt the agreement 

between June, Dick and Kandi. 

19. Kimberly and her boyfriend Dean Loggans (“Dean”) were living in the Kraft 

House to assist with caring for June from approximately May 2019 to the end of July 2019, with 

the permission of Dick and Kandi. 

20. After approximately July 2019, June returned to live with her husband Gerry in a 

different residence. 

21. After approximately July 2019, Kimberly and Dean abandoned the Kraft House 

and returned to California. 

22. On or about August 26, 2019, Dick changed the locks on the Kraft House. 

23. Shortly after the locks were changed, Kimberly and Dean broke into the Kraft 

House without permission. 

24. On or about September 5, 2019, Dick began eviction proceedings against 

Kimberly and Dean. See Powell vs. Kimberly and Dean, Las Vegas Justice Court Case No. 

19R000148 (“Eviction Case”). 

25. Kimberly and Dean have continued to live in the Kraft House since then without 

paying rent. 

26. On July 31, 2019, Kimberly filed a petition in the Clark County Nevada Probate 

Court, Case No. P-19-100166-E, asking the probate court to rule upon whether powers of attorney 

allegedly executed by June in favor of Kimberly (“Powers of Attorney”) were valid and 

enforceable (“POA Case”). 

27. Kimberly understood the Powers of Attorney may not be enforceable, because 

original copies of the documents do not exist. 
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28. On or about September 6, 2019, the Clark County Nevada Probate Court held a 

hearing and did not rule whether the Powers of Attorney are valid and enforceable because 

Kimberly failed to make proper service of the hearing on June. 

29. After the hearing on September 6, 2019, Kimberly and her counsel expressed in 

the Courthouse hallway they would not take June away from her husband and separate the two 

of them. 

30. Nonetheless, less than 36 hours later, without any Court ruling as to Kimberly’s 

authority, on September 7, 2019, Kimberly forcibly took June from a hotel restaurant in Phoenix 

while Gerry was undergoing medical treatment at the Mayo Clinic in Phoenix. 

31. Kimberly took June even though June said, “I don’t want to go,” and Kimberly 

took June without Gerry’s knowledge. 

32. Kimberly lied by telling June she was going to take June to get a bagel, and then 

they would go see Gerry at the hospital. 

33. Kimberly’s brother-in-law stood in front of the chair of June’s caregiver to prevent 

her from assisting June so Kimberly and her brother-in-law could take June. 

34. For several days, Gerry did not know where June was or know whether she was 

safe. 

35. Neither Kimberly nor her siblings had any legal authority to manage or control 

June’s person, nor separate June from her husband Gerry, and the first time June’s daughters had 

any authority over her person was when they obtained an ex-parte guardianship order on 

September 23, 2019. 

36. Since June’s taking, Gerry has been prevented from living with June under 

reasonable circumstances, and Kimberly has monitored June’s calls with Gerry and attempted to 

keep them from freely communicating. 

1512



 

Page 9 of 26 

 
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 
871 Coronado Center Drive,  
Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
(702) 837-1908 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

 

37. Kimberly has prevented June and Gerry from spending time together alone. 

38. June has repeatedly asked Gerry for opportunities to travel with him, and Kimberly 

has repeatedly refused to let June do so. 

39. Before Kimberly forcibly took June, June and Gerry enjoyed a loving and stable 

marriage: they lived together, provided each other care and companionship, shared household 

duties, and enjoyed participating in various hobbies and activities together, such as traveling. 

40. Kimberly and Dean have constructively evicted Gerry from the place that has been 

his primary residence for the past ten years. 

41. Kimberly has chosen to sue Gerry in spite of June indicating she does not want 

Kimberly to sue Gerry. 

42. Gerry has suffered extreme emotional distress as a result of Kimberly and Dean’s 

actions. 

43. Kimberly has abused process in three different cases: 1) the POA Case; 2) the 

Eviction Case; and 3) In re Guardianship of June Jones, Clark County District Court Case No. 

G-19-052263-A (“Guardianship Case”). 

44. Kimberly abused process by having a lis pendens issued in the POA Case, and 

then recording that lis pendens with the Clark County Recorder, even though there was no action 

related to the Kraft House pending in the POA Case. 

45. Kimberly abused process by having a lis pendens issued in the Guardianship Case, 

and then recording that lis pendens with the Clark County Recorder, even though there was no 

action related to the Kraft House pending in the Guardianship Case.  

46. Kimberly abused process by repeatedly making blatantly false statements in 

multiple pleadings in the POA Case, the Eviction Case, and the Guardianship Case. 
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47. Kimberly knew, or should have known, that the statements she made were false, 

and were therefore intended to be inflammatory to obtain an abusive advantage in the POA Case, 

the Eviction Case, and the Guardianship Case. 

CAUSE OF ACTION I 
(Quiet Title) 

(Dick and Kandi against Kimberly, as guardian of June) 

48. Counter Claimants repeat and reallege all prior paragraphs of this complaint as 

though fully set forth herein. 

49. Pursuant to NRS 40.010, this Court is empowered to declare the rights and legal 

relations of the parties in this matter. 

50. A justiciable controversy exists between the Parties as both June and Dick and 

Kandi have made conflicting claims to title of the Kraft House, wherein Dick and Kandi contend 

they are the lawful owner of the Kraft House and June, through her guardian, contends to the 

contrary. 

51. Counter-Defendant has filed two lis pendens on the Kraft House property. 

52. Dick and Kandi are the legal and equitable owners of the Kraft House, having 

received legitimate title from June through a legal transaction. 

53. At the time of the sale, June was competent and aware of her decision to sell the 

Kraft House to Dick and Kandi. 

54. A third-party notary was comfortable that June understood what she was signing 

and the implications of doing so, and he witnessed and signed off on her signature. 

55. This Court should quiet title of the Kraft House in the name of Dick and Kandi. 

56. Counter Defendant’s conduct has damaged Dick and Kandi in excess of $15,000 

plus interest, in an amount to be determined at trial. 
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57. Counter-Defendant’s conduct in necessitating this litigation was malicious, 

fraudulent, or oppressive and was designed to vex, annoy, harass, or humiliate Dick and Kandi; 

thus, Dick and Kandi are entitled to an award of punitive damages. 

58. As a result of Counter-Defendant’s conduct, Dick and Kandi have been required 

to retain the services of an attorney and, thus are entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs 

plus interest, pursuant to Nevada law. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Based on the foregoing, Counter-Claimants request judgment against Counter-Defendant 

as follows: 

1.  For damages in excess of $15,000; 

2.  Pre and post judgment interest; 

3.  An order quieting title; 

4.  For punitive damages; 

5.  For attorney’s fees and costs; 

6.  For such other and further relief as this court may deem just and proper. 

DATED this 22nd day of June, 2020.  KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 

/s/ Ty Kehoe                                              
Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. 

 
      PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 

/s/ Matthew C. Piccolo                              
Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
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THIRD PARTY CLAIMS OR COUNTER-CLAIMS AGAINST JOINED PARTIES 
 

Defendants Dick Powell (“Dick”), Kandi Powell (“Kandi”), and Rodney Gerald Yeoman 

(“Gerry”), husband of Kathleen June Jones (“June”) (“Third Party Claimants”), by and through 

their counsel Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. and Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq, hereby assert third party claims or 

counter-claims against joined parties, and allege against Kimberly Jones and Dean Loggans 

(“Third Party Defendants”) as follows: 

COMMON FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

1. Third Party Defendant Kimberly Jones is an individual who at all times herein 

mentioned was a resident of Clark County, Nevada, or consented to jurisdiction herein. 

2. Third Party Defendant Dean Loggans, is an individual who at all times herein 

mentioned was a resident of Clark County, Nevada, or consented to jurisdiction herein. 

3. Counter-Claimants Richard Powell, Kandi Powell, and Rodney Gerald Yeoman 

are individuals who at all times herein mentioned were residents of Clark County, Nevada. 

4. Venue is proper in the Eighth Judicial District Court in Clark County, Nevada, 

pursuant to NRS 13.040 because (1) the Third Party Defendants reside in Clark County, Nevada; 

and/or (2) the obligations, acts, abuses, and tortious conduct complained of herein were incurred 

and committed, in whole or in part, within Clark County, Nevada. 

5. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Third Party Defendants, pursuant to NRS 

14.065 because (1) Third Party Defendants’ activities and contacts in Nevada have been and 

continue to be so substantial, continuous, and systematic that Defendant is deemed present in the 

forum; and/or (2) the obligations, acts, omissions, and tortious actions complained of herein were 

incurred and committed, in whole or in part, in Clark County, Nevada, and thus, Third Party 

Defendants have had sufficient minimum contacts with this forum such that the exercise of 
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personal jurisdiction over them will not offend traditional notions of fair play and substantial 

justice. 

6. Dick and Kandi have provided hundreds of thousands of dollars of value to June 

and Gerry in travel, cars, payment of medical bills, payment of credit card bills, and more. 

7. In January 2018, June knowingly and freely agreed to sell to Dick, Gerry’s son-

in-law, her real property located at 6277 Kraft Avenue in Las Vegas, NV (“Kraft House”). 

8. In exchange, Dick and Kandi paid off June’s mortgage on the Kraft House in the 

approximate amount of $140,000. 

9. June was interested in having the mortgage expense eliminated. 

10. June was fully informed about the Kraft House transfer. 

11. June was mentally competent at the time of the sale and understood what she was 

doing. 

12. June signed a deed in the presence of a third-party notary who was comfortable 

with her mental competency and with her signing the deed on her own. 

13. June subsequently signed documents with her bank officers who also believed she 

was competent to sign such documents. 

14. The Kraft House sale was publicly recorded with the Clark County Recorder in 

January 2018. 

15. Kimberly was imputed with actual knowledge of the Kraft House sale as a result 

of the publicly recorded document. 

16. Kimberly was a signer on June’s bank account and thus had access to that bank 

account, and could have seen that June stopped making the mortgage payments on the Kraft 

House in January 2018. 
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17. If Kimberly was properly acting as June’s power of attorney, as Kimberly claims, 

then she should have expressed concern about June not making the necessary mortgage payments 

on the Kraft House. 

18. Kimberly did not actually perform any actions as June’s power of attorney at any 

time prior to mid-2019. 

19. In late 2018, Kimberly and her sisters discovered that June had sold the Kraft 

House to Dick and Kandi and have since done everything in their power to disrupt the agreement 

between June, Dick and Kandi. 

20. Kimberly and her boyfriend Dean Loggans (“Dean”) were living in the Kraft 

House to assist with caring for June from approximately May 2019 to the end of July 2019, with 

the permission of Dick and Kandi. 

21. After approximately July 2019, June returned to live with her husband Gerry in a 

different residence. 

22. After approximately July 2019, Kimberly and Dean abandoned the Kraft House 

and returned to California. 

23. On or about August 26, 2019, Dick changed the locks on the Kraft House. 

24. Shortly after the locks were changed, Kimberly and Dean broke into the Kraft 

House without permission. 

25. On or about September 5, 2019, Dick began eviction proceedings against 

Kimberly and Dean. See Powell vs. Kimberly and Dean, Las Vegas Justice Court Case No. 

19R000148 (“Eviction Case”) 

26. Kimberly and Dean have continued to live in the Kraft House since then without 

paying rent. 
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27. On July 31, 2019, Kimberly filed a petition in the Clark County Nevada Probate 

Court, Case No. P-19-100166-E, asking the probate court to rule upon whether powers of attorney 

allegedly executed by June in favor of Kimberly (“Powers of Attorney”) were valid and 

enforceable (“POA Case”). 

28. Kimberly understood the Powers of Attorney may not be enforceable, because 

original copies of the documents do not exist. 

29. On or about September 6, 2019, the Clark County Nevada Probate Court held a 

hearing and did not rule whether the Powers of Attorney are valid and enforceable because 

Kimberly failed to make proper service of the hearing on June. 

30. After the hearing on September 6, 2019, Kimberly and her counsel expressed in 

the Courthouse hallway they would not take June away from her husband and separate the two 

of them. 

31. Nonetheless, less than 36 hours later, without any Court ruling as to Kimberly’s 

authority, on September 7, 2019, Kimberly forcibly took June from a hotel restaurant in Phoenix 

while Gerry was undergoing medical treatment at the Mayo Clinic in Phoenix. 

32. Kimberly took June even though June said, “I don’t want to go” and without 

Gerry’s knowledge. 

33. Kimberly lied by telling June she was going to take June to get a bagel, and then 

they would go see Gerry at the hospital. 

34. Kimberly’s brother-in-law stood in front of the chair of June’s caregiver to prevent 

her from assisting June so Kimberly and her brother-in-law could take June. 

35. For several days, Gerry did not know where June was or know whether she was 

safe. 
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36. Neither Kimberly nor her siblings had any legal authority to manage or control 

June’s person, nor separate June from her husband Gerry, and the first time June’s daughters had 

any authority over her person was when they obtained an ex-parte guardianship order on 

September 23, 2019. 

37. Since June’s taking, Gerry has been prevented from living with June under 

reasonable circumstances, and Kimberly has monitored June’s calls with Gerry and attempted to 

keep them from freely communicating. 

38. Kimberly has prevented June and Gerry from spending time together alone. 

39. June has repeatedly asked Gerry for opportunities to travel with him, and Kimberly 

has repeatedly refused to let June do so. 

40. Before Kimberly forcibly took June, June and Gerry enjoyed a loving and stable 

marriage: they lived together, provided each other care and companionship, shared household 

duties, and enjoyed participating in various hobbies and activities together, such as traveling. 

41. Kimberly and Dean have constructively evicted Gerry from the place that has been 

his primary residence for the past ten years. 

42. Kimberly has chosen to sue Gerry in spite of June indicating she does not want 

Kimberly to sue Gerry. 

43. Gerry has suffered extreme emotional distress as a result of Kimberly and Dean’s 

actions. 

44. Kimberly has abused process in three different cases: 1) the POA Case; 2) the 

Eviction Case; and 3) In re Guardianship of June Jones, Clark County District Court Case No. 

G-19-052263-A (“Guardianship Case”). 
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45. Kimberly abused process by having a lis pendens issued in the POA Case, and 

then recording that lis pendens with the Clark County Recorder, even though there was no action 

related to the Kraft House pending in the POA Case. 

46. Kimberly abused process by having a lis pendens issued in the Guardianship Case, 

and then recording that lis pendens with the Clark County Recorder, even though there was no 

action related to the Kraft House pending in the Guardianship Case.  

47. Kimberly abused process by repeatedly making blatantly false statements in 

multiple pleadings in the POA Case, the Eviction Case, and the Guardianship Case. 

48. Kimberly knew, or should have known, that the statements she made were false, 

and were therefore intended to be inflammatory to obtain an abusive advantage in the POA Case, 

the Eviction Case, and the Guardianship Case. 

CAUSE OF ACTION I 
(Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress) 

(Gerry against Kimberly and Dean) 

49. Third Party Claimants repeat and reallege all prior paragraphs of this complaint as 

though fully set forth herein. 

50. Third Party Defendants forcibly took June from her husband Gerry against her 

will without any legal authority to do so, and just one day after assuring Gerry they would not 

separate him from June. 

51. Kimberly’s alleged power of attorney had not been confirmed by the Probate 

Court, and even if it had been it did not give Kimberly and Dean any legal authority over June’s 

person. 
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52. According to a police report and sworn declaration, Third Party Defendants forced 

June to go with them even after she said “I don’t want to go” and blocked June’s hired caregiver 

so she could not move to help June. 

53. For several days, Gerry did not know where his wife was or whether she was safe. 

54. Third Party Defendants’ conduct in taking June from her husband Gerry was 

extreme and outrageous, outside the bounds of decency, and would be regarded as utterly 

intolerable in a civilized community. 

55. Because of Third Party Defendants’ conduct, Gerry suffered severe or extreme 

emotional distress, anguish, humiliation, and the loss of enjoyment of life, having his wife 

suddenly taken from him without authority and not knowing where she was and whether she was 

safe. 

56. Third Party Defendants acted with either the intention of, or reckless disregard for, 

causing emotional distress to Gerry. 

57. Third Party Defendants’ conduct was the actual or proximate cause of Gerry’s 

severe emotional distress, anguish, humiliation, and the loss of enjoyment of life. 

58. Third Party Defendants’ conduct has damaged Gerry in excess of $15,000 plus 

interest, in an amount to be determined at trial. 

59. Third Party Defendants’ conduct was malicious, fraudulent, or oppressive and was 

designed to vex, annoy, harass, or humiliate Gerry; thus, Gerry is entitled to an award of punitive 

damages. 

60. As a result of Third Party Defendants’ conduct, Gerry has been required to retain 

the services of an attorney and, thus, is entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs plus 

interest, pursuant to Nevada law. 
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CAUSE OF ACTION II 
(Trespass) 

(Dick and Kandi against Kimberly and Dean) 

61. Third Party Claimants repeat and reallege all prior paragraphs of this complaint as 

though fully set forth herein. 

62. Third Party Defendants invaded the property of Dick and Kandi by remaining in 

the Kraft House, which Dick and Kandi own, after Third Party Defendants were no longer 

welcome to be there. 

63. Even after Dick changed the locks on the Kraft House, Third Party Defendants 

forced their way into the house against the will of Dick and Kandi. 

64. Third Party Defendants acted intentionally to intrude by knowingly refusing to 

leave the property and re-entering the house after the locks were changed. 

65. Due to Third Party Defendants’ conduct, Dick and Kandi have been unable to 

benefit from the property they own, resulting in a loss of money and enjoyment. 

66. As a direct result of Third Party Defendants’ actions, Dick and Kandi have been 

damaged, in an amount in excess of $15,000 plus interest, in an amount to be determined at trial. 

67. As a result of Third Party Defendants’ conduct, Dick and Kandi have been 

required to retain the services of an attorney and, thus, are entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees 

and costs plus interest, pursuant to Nevada law. 

CAUSE OF ACTION III 
(Nuisance; Violation of NRS 40.140) 

(Dick and Kandi against Kimberly and Dean) 

68. Third Party Claimants repeat and reallege all prior paragraphs of this complaint as 

though fully set forth herein. 
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69. Third Party Defendants’ occupation of the Kraft House has been unwarranted and 

unlawful and has caused substantial and unreasonable interference with Dick’s and Kandi’s 

ability to comfortably enjoy their property. 

70. Third Party Defendants’ occupation of the Kraft House has been an obstruction to 

Dick’s and Kandi’s free use of the property. 

71. Third Party Defendants’ conduct constitutes nuisance pursuant to NRS 40.140, 

and Dick and Kandi are entitled to damages resulting from the nuisance and to have the nuisance 

enjoined or abated. 

72.  As a direct result of Third Party Defendants’ actions, Dick and Kandi have been 

damaged, in an amount in excess of $15,000 plus interest, in an amount to be determined at trial. 

73. As a result of Third Party Defendants’ conduct, Dick and Kandi have been 

required to retain the services of an attorney and, thus, are entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees 

and costs plus interest, pursuant to Nevada law. 

CAUSE OF ACTION IV 
(Unjust Enrichment) 

(Dick and Kandi against Kimberly and Dean) 

74. Third Party Claimants repeat and reallege all prior paragraphs of this complaint as 

though fully set forth herein. 

75.  Third Party Claimants provided value to Third Party Defendants including in the 

form of the use of the Kraft House. 

76. No express, written contract existed between Third Party Claimants and Third 

Party Defendants regarding their occupation of the Kraft House. 

77. Third Party Defendants appreciated the benefit Third Party Claimants conferred 

upon them by enjoying free rent and the use of the Kraft House. 
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78. Third Party Defendants’ occupation of the Kraft House has caused wear and tear 

on the House and has prevented Dick and Kandi from gaining income by renting out the rooms 

Third Party Defendants have occupied. 

79. Third Party Defendants have not provided any benefits in return to Third Party 

Claimants for the value they have received. 

80. Third Party Defendants have unjustly retained the value received from Third Party 

Claimants, against fundamental principles of justice or equity and good conscience.  

81. As a direct result of Third Party Defendants’ actions, Dick and Kandi have been 

damaged, in an amount in excess of $15,000 plus interest, in an amount to be determined at trial. 

82. As a result of Third Party Defendants’ conduct, Dick and Kandi have been 

required to retain the services of an attorney and, thus, are entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees 

and costs plus interest, pursuant to Nevada law. 

CAUSE OF ACTION V 
(Intentional Interference with Contractual Relations) 

(Dick and Kandi against Kimberly and Dean) 

83. Third Party Claimants repeat and reallege all prior paragraphs of this complaint as 

though fully set forth herein. 

84. A valid contract exists between Dick and Kandi and June whereby they agreed 

that June would sell Dick and Kandi the Kraft House. 

85. Third Party Defendants had and have knowledge of the contract between Dick and 

Kandi and June. 

86. Third Party Defendants have intentionally tried to disrupt the contractual 

relationship by needlessly attempting to unwind the execution of the contract, by trespassing in 

the Kraft House, by convincing June she did not intend to sell the Kraft House to Dick and Kandi, 
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and by preventing June and Gerry from living together in the Kraft House under reasonable 

circumstances that a married couple deserves and would expect. 

87. Third Party Defendants have actually disrupted the contract by needlessly 

attempting to unwind the execution of the contract, by trespassing in the Kraft House, by 

convincing June that she did not intend to sell the Kraft House to Dick and Kandi, and by 

preventing June and Gerry from living together in the Kraft House under reasonable 

circumstances that a married couple deserves and would expect. 

88. As a direct result of Third Party Defendants’ actions, Dick and Kandi have 

suffered loss of money, emotional distress, annoyance, and humiliation. 

89. As a direct result of Third Party Defendants’ actions, Dick and Kandi have been 

damaged, in an amount in excess of $15,000 plus interest, in an amount to be determined at trial. 

90. Third Party Defendants’ conduct was malicious, fraudulent, or oppressive and was 

designed to vex, annoy, harass, or humiliate Dick and Kandi; thus, Dick and Kandi are entitled 

to an award of punitive damages. 

91. As a result of Third Party Defendants’ conduct, Dick and Kandi have been 

required to retain the services of an attorney and, thus, are entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees 

and costs plus interest, pursuant to Nevada law. 

CAUSE OF ACTION VI 
(Loss of Consortium) 

(Gerry against Kimberly and Dean) 

92. Third Party Claimants repeat and reallege all prior paragraphs of this complaint as 

though fully set forth herein. 

93. A valid and lawful marriage exists between June and Gerry. 
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94. Third Party Defendants injured June by forcefully taking her from her husband 

Gerry against her will, which constitutes kidnapping and false imprisonment. 

95. Third Party Defendants have also injured June by interfering with her contractual 

relations with Dick and Kandi, which has prevented her and Gerry from living together. 

96. Third Party Defendants continue to disrupt their marital relationship by 

monitoring June’s phone calls with Gerry and by preventing them from spending time together 

alone. 

97. Gerry has suffered a loss of consortium from the time Third Party Defendants 

forcibly took his wife June from him, which has resulted in pain, suffering, inconvenience, and 

other nonpecuniary damages. 

98. Prior to Third Party Defendants’ actions, June and Gerry enjoyed a loving and 

stable marriage. 

99. Prior to Third Party Defendants’ actions, June and Gerry lived together, provided 

each other care and companionship, and shared household duties. 

100. Prior to Third Party Defendants’ actions, June and Gerry enjoyed participating in 

various hobbies and activities together, such as traveling. 

101. Gerry’s loss of consortium is a direct result of Third Party Defendants’ actions. 

102. As a direct result of Third Party Defendants’ actions, Gerry has been damaged, in 

an amount in excess of $15,000 plus interest, in an amount to be determined at trial. 

103. Third Party Defendants’ conduct was malicious, fraudulent, or oppressive and was 

designed to vex, annoy, harass, or humiliate Gerry; thus, Gerry is entitled to an award of punitive 

damages. 
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104. As a result of Third Party Defendants’ conduct, Third Party Claimant has been 

required to retain the services of an attorney and, thus, is entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees 

and costs plus interest, pursuant to Nevada law. 

CAUSE OF ACTION VII 

(Abuse of Process against Kimberly) 

105. Third Party Claimants repeat and reallege all prior paragraphs of this complaint as 

though fully set forth herein. 

106. Third Party Defendant improperly issued a lis pendens in the POA Case, and then 

recorded such lis pendens with the Clark County Recorder. 

107. Third Party Defendant improperly issued a lis pendens in the Guardianship Case, 

and then recorded such lis pendens with the Clark County Recorder. 

108. Third Party Defendant has repeatedly made blatantly false allegations, in multiple 

pleadings filed in the POA Case, the Eviction Case, and the Guardianship Case. 

109. Third Party Defendant either knew, or should have known, her allegations were 

false. 

110. The filing of the improper lis pendens and recording of the same were an improper 

use of process to harm Dick and Kandi’s interest in the Kraft House. 

111. The false allegations by the Third Party Defendant were designed to be inflammatory 

against the Third Party Claimants in order to obtain an unfair advantage in the respective cases. 

112. Therefore, Third Party Defendant had an ulterior purpose other than resolving a 

legal dispute. 

113. Third Party Counter-Defendant’s willful acts in use of process were not in the 

regular conduct of the three different proceedings. 
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114. As a direct result of Third Party Defendant’s actions, Third Party Claimants have 

been damaged, in an amount in excess of $15,000 plus interest, in an amount to be determined at 

trial. 

115. Third Party Defendants’ conduct was malicious, fraudulent, or oppressive and was 

designed to vex, annoy, harass, or humiliate Third Party Claimants; thus, Third Party Claimants 

are entitled to an award of punitive damages. 

116. As a result of Third Party Defendant’s conduct, Third Party Claimants have been 

required to retain the services of an attorney and, thus, are entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees 

and costs plus interest, pursuant to Nevada law. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Based on the foregoing, Third Party Claimants request judgment against Third Party 

Defendants as follows: 

1. For damages in excess of $15,000; 

2. For pre and post judgment interest; 

3. For punitive damages; 

4. For attorney’s fees and costs; and 

5. For such other and further relief as this court may deem just and proper. 

DATED this 22nd day of June, 2020.  KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 

/s/ Ty Kehoe                                              
Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. 

 
      PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 

/s/ Matthew C. Piccolo                             
Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 22nd day of June, 2020, I served a true and correct copy 

of the Answer to First Amended Complaint, Counterclaims, and Third Party Claims via electronic 

service to the following, or via US First Class Mail postage pre-paid to the addresses listed:  

James Beckstrom, Esq. 
Marquis Aurbach Coffing 

 

 
 
 

      /s/ Ty E. Kehoe___________  
      Ty E. Kehoe 
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KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 
TY E. KEHOE, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 006011 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Telephone: (702) 837-1908 
Facsimile: (702) 837-1932 
TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com 
 
GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM 
Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10562 
725 S. 8th Street, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada  89101 
Telephone:  (702) 878-1115 
Facsimile: (702) 979-2485 
laura@ghandilaw.com 

 
  Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
  Nevada Bar No. 14331 
  PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 
  8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150  
  Las Vegas, NV 89123 
  Tel: (702) 749-3699 
  Fax: (702) 944-6630 
  matt@piccololawoffices.com 
 
 Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
In the matter of the Guardianship of the Person 
and Estate of: 
 
 KATHLEEN JUNE JONES, 
 
  Adult Protected Person. 
 

             
   Case No.:     G-19-052263-A 
   Dept. No:     B 
 
   Date:  n/a 
   Time:  n/a 

 
NOTICE OF APPEAL 

 
Notice is hereby given that Rodney Gerald Yeoman by and through attorney, Ty E. 

Kehoe, Esq., hereby appeals the Order Denying Rodney Gerald Yeoman’s Petition for Removal 

of Guardian and for Return of Protected Person’s Property and denying Kimberly Jones’ 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
6/26/2020 1:48 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Counter-Petition for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 159.1853(4) entered herein on 

May 28, 2020. 

Dated this 26th day of June, 2020.  KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 

/s/ Ty Kehoe                                                   
Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Attorney for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 

 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 26th day of June, 2020, I served a true and correct 

copy of the Notice of Appeal by electronic service through the Court’s e-service system or via 

first class mail, postage prepaid, as indicated below, to the following:  

Geraldine Tomich, Esq. 
gtomich@maclaw.com 
James A. Beckstom, Esq. 
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com 
 
Counsel for Kimberly Jones 
 
All other parties via e-service on the court’s system 

John P. Michaelson, Esq. 
john@michaelsonlaw.com 
Jeffrey R. Sylvester, Esq. 
jeff@SylvesterPolednak.com 
 
Counsel for Robyn Friedman 
and Donna Simmons 
 

   
     

 

 
Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq. 
Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada, Inc. 
mparra@lacsn.org 
 
 
Counsel for June Jones 
 
 

 
 
/s/ Ty E. Kehoe___________ 
Ty E. Kehoe 
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Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10562 
725 S. 8th Street, Suite 100 
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Telephone: (702) 878-1115 
Facsimile: (702) 979-2485 
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  Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
  Nevada Bar No. 14331 
  PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 
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  Las Vegas, NV 89123 
  Tel: (702) 749-3699 
  Fax: (702) 944-6630 
  matt@piccololawoffices.com 
 
Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
In the Matter of the Guardianship of the 
Person and Estate of 
 
 KATHLEEN JUNE JONES, 
 Protected Person. 

 Case No: G-19-052263-A 
Dept. No.:  B 
 
Date: July 15, 2020 
Time: 9:30 a.m. 

 
REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION PURSUANT TO E.D.C.R. 2.24, N.R.C.P. 52, 59 

AND 60 REGARDING THE DECISION AND ORDER ENTERED ON MAY 21, 2020 
 

[  ] TEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP 
    [  ]  Person 
    [  ]  Estate     [  ] Special Guardianship 
    [  ]  Person and Estate 

[ X ]  GENERAL GUARDIANSHIP 
    [  ]  Person 
    [  ]  Estate     [  ] Special Guardianship 
    [ X ]  Person and Estate 

[  ] SPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP 
    [  ]  Person 
    [  ]  Estate     [  ] Special Guardianship 
    [  ]  Person and Estate 

[  ]  NOTICES / SAFEGUARDS 
    [  ]  Blocked Account Required 
    [  ]  Bond Required 
    [  ]  Public Guardian’s Bond 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
7/8/2020 6:11 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), by and through his counsel of record Ty E. Kehoe, 

Esq., hereby submits this Reply to Opposition to Motion pursuant to E.D.C.R. 2.24, N.R.C.P. 

52, 59 and 60, regarding the Order Granting and Denying Kimberly Jones, as Guardian of the 

Protective [sic] Person’s Motion for Protective Order entered on May 21, 2020. 

The Opposition wrongly infers that Gerry is seeking to change the Court’s ruling 

regarding the underlying discovery disputes. Gerry is not attempting to do so. Gerry’s Motion is 

focused solely upon the award of attorney fees being improper and unreasonable under the 

controlling statutes and the factual history of Gerry’s discovery efforts, including the Court’s 

own statements which authorized Gerry’s discovery efforts. The arguments underlying the 

Motion for Protective Order and Gerry’s Opposition thereto were focused upon whether the 

discovery was proper. The arguments were not focused upon whether such discovery efforts 

were substantially justified or whether grounds existed for awarding attorney fees, and Gerry 

never had an opportunity to be heard on the same. 

The Opposition continues to argue the existence of a “mandatory fee shifting” rule. In 

fact, it dizzyingly argues: “while NRCP 37 of course contains exceptions for the Court to 

consider, fee shifting in mandatory. . . .”1 However, as laid out in the Motion, the rule is not 

mandatory. The Opposition argues: “This Court is well aware of these rules of procedure and 

concisely stated the basis for its fee award”2; however, this is not factually based. Neither the 

Court’s oral ruling nor the written order address the non-mandatory nature of the fee rule. 

The Opposition substantially ignores NRCP 37(a)(5)(A)(i), NRCP 26(c)(1) and EDCR 

5.602(d) which require an in person or telephonic good faith attempt to resolve discovery issues 

prior to any award of attorney fees. Prior to the Opposition being filed, it was undisputed that 

no such attempt was made. 

 
1 Opposition at 5:5. 
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The Opposition raises for the first time that “repeated telegonic discussion over this very 

issue took place between Mr. Kehoe and counsel for the Guardian”3 and “following telephone 

conversations. . . .”4 This allegation has never before been made, and is now being made 

without any substantiation of any type. It is another example of Counsel for the Guardian 

simply creating facts, and attempting to ignore clear court rules because he apparently believes 

he does not need to comply.5 Page 88 of the Guardian’s Motion for Protective Order includes 

an email, dated February 6, 2020, from Gerry’s Counsel to Counsel for the Guardian wherein 

Gerry’s Counsel states: “If you want to have a meet and confer we can do that.” Counsel for the 

Guardian never did so. Counsel for the Guardian also never submitted a certification of his 

efforts.6 

The Oppositions claims: “The email exchanges between the attorneys representing each 

person relevant to the Motion for Protective Order provided the Court clear proof of repeated 

efforts to Mr. Kehoe to abandon the depositions and written discovery”7 and cites to paragraph 

12 of the Order. However, paragraph 12 of the Order deals with whether a pending motion 

existed and does not at all mention emails or efforts to obtain a withdrawal of the discovery. In 

fact, nothing in the Order mentions emails nor anything about meet and confer or certification 

requirements. 

The Opposition repeatedly acknowledges a reversal of the Court’s ruling is appropriate 

if there was clear error.8 Gerry suggests, that as to awarding attorney fees, there was clear error, 

 
2 Id. at 2:21. 
3 Id. at5:11. 
4 Id. at 5:18. 
5 Motion for Protective Order at 6:7, which mentions nothing about telegonic communications, and brushes aside 
Counsel for the Guardian’s responsibility to actual comply with the rules. 
6 NRCP 26(c)(1) and EDCR 5.602(d) require a certification and affidavit. Counsel for the Guardian knows how to 
comply with such rule as he attaches a certification to the Opposition rather than simply relying upon his signature 
to the Opposition as an officer of the court. 
7 Opposition at 5:9. 
8 Id. at 3:1-24. 
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and the Order includes “clearly erroneous factual determination[s] or it disregards controlling 

law.”9 

The Motion properly included many arguments in addition to simply quoting EDCR 

2.24, NRCP 52, 59 and 60. 

The Opposition continues to allege that “there was no pending petition or motion in 

front of the Court”10 and thus the discovery efforts were improper. However, to this day, no 

authority has ever been presented in any filing indicating that a pending petition or motion in 

front of the court is mandatory prior to pursuing discovery. In fact, without any pending petition 

or motion the Court specifically stated: “discovery is open, discover away.” In addition, at the 

time of the hearing underlying the Order, Gerry had in fact filed a petition to remove the 

guardian. 

The Opposition spins the clear language of NRCP 37(a)(5)(B)11, which provides for an 

opportunity to be heard regarding requested attorney fees, as somehow not meaning exactly 

what it says. Here, Counsel for the Guardian never served the memorandum of fees and costs.  

It makes no sense for Counsel for the Guardian to argue that Gerry had an opportunity to be 

heard about the memorandum of fees and costs when Gerry never even knew such existed. 

The Opposition requests additional attorney fees; however, provides no basis for the 

same. The Motion is in good faith and raises legitimate concerns. Merely raising these concerns 

should not subject Gerry to further sanctions. 

The Opposition fails to address the key argument in the Motion, which is that Gerry’s 

actions were substantially justified based upon the facts outlined in the Motion, and thus 

attorney fees were not appropriately awarded. 

 
9 Id. at 3:28. 
10 Id. at 5:7. 
11 Id. at 7:5. 
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The Opposition fails to address why the Estate is incurring attorney fees for the benefit 

of Robyn and Donna, let alone why such attorney fees would be reasonably awarded to the 

Estate. 

The Opposition fails to address which portion of the Motion for Protective Order was 

granted and which portion was denied. 

The Opposition does not oppose Gerry’s request for a stay pending appeal, thus 

indicating a consent to the same (if the Court does not vacate the award of attorney fees). 

 Based upon the above, Gerry requests the Court vacate the award to Kimberly of 

attorney fees against both Gerry and Ty Kehoe. Alternatively, Gerry requests the Court clarify 

the various aspects of its Order as detailed in the Motion and above, and grant a stay pending 

appeal. 

DATED this 8th day of July, 2020.  KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 

/s/ Ty Kehoe                                            
Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 8th day of July, 2020, I served a true and correct copy 

of the Reply to Opposition to Motion pursuant to E.D.C.R. 2.24, N.R.C.P. 52, 59 and 60, 

regarding the Order Granting and Denying Kimberly Jones, as Guardian of the Protective [sic] 

Person’s Motion for Protective Order entered on May 21, 2020, by electronic service through 

the Court’s e-service system or via first class mail, postage prepaid, as indicated below, to the 

following:  

Geraldine Tomich, Esq. 
gtomich@maclaw.com 
James A. Beckstom, Esq. 
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com 
 
Counsel for Kimberly Jones 
 
All other parties via e-service on the court’s system 

John P. Michaelson, Esq. 
john@michaelsonlaw.com 
Jeffrey R. Sylvester, Esq. 
jeff@SylvesterPolednak.com 
 
Counsel for Robyn Friedman 
and Donna Simmons 
 

   
     

 

 
Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq. 
Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada, Inc. 
mparra@lacsn.org 
 
 
Counsel for June Jones 
 
 

 
 
/s/ Ty E. Kehoe___________ 
Ty E. Kehoe 

  

 

 

1538



 

Page 1 of 12 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

  
OPPS 
GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM 
Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10562 
725 S. 8th Street, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
Telephone: (702) 878-1115 
Facsimile: (702) 979-2485 
laura@ghandilaw.com 
 
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 
TY E. KEHOE, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 006011 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Telephone: (702) 837-1908 
Facsimile: (702) 837-1932 
TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com 

 
  Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
  Nevada Bar No. 14331 
  PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 
  8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150  
  Las Vegas, NV 89123 
  Tel: (702) 630-5030 
  Fax: (702) 944-6630 
  matt@piccololawoffices.com 
Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
In the matter of the Guardianship of the Person 
and Estate of: 
 
 KATHLEEN JUNE JONES, 
 
  Adult Protected Person. 
 

             
   Case No.:     G-19-052263-A 
   Dept. No:     B 
 
   Date:  August 12, 2020 
   Time:  9:30 a.m. 

 
OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE 

 
 Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), husband of the Protected Person Kathleen June Jones 

(“June”), by and through his counsel of record, submits this Opposition to Kimberly Jones’s 

Motion to Consolidate. 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
7/13/2020 1:05 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Introduction. 

 Kimberly’s request to consolidate the A case with the guardianship case simply does not 

make sense, and consolidating the cases is not proper.  

 First, this Court may not have jurisdiction to resolve the claims in the A case. One of 

the central questions in the A case is whether June had mental capacity when she chose to sell 

the Kraft House to Dick and Kandi Powell. The Court has specifically stated it doesn’t have 

jurisdiction to make that determination.1  Also, although family division courts have authority 

to address other matters related to cases within its jurisdiction, it should only do so in rare 

situations, and this is not one of those situations. 

 Second, consolidating the cases would not result in any savings of time or money. The 

guardianship case rightly focuses on June’s ongoing health and well-being, whereas the A case 

focuses on disputed past events. The motion practice involved in the two cases is completely 

different with little to no overlap. There is no discovery or testimony from the guardianship case 

that would aid in completing the A case because the Court has not allowed any discovery in the 

guardianship case and did not hold an evidentiary hearing. 

 Third, the parties and issues in the two cases are different. Dick, Kandi, Dean, and 

Kimberly (as an individual) are parties to the A case, whereas they are not parties to the 

guardianship case. The A case also involves claims and counterclaims based on facts and issues 

this Court has never addressed, most of which occurred before a guardianship was sought.  

 Fourth, it is ironic that Kimberly requested the ability to file an A case in front of a 

different judge, she then obtained permission from the guardianship court in order to file that A 

case, she then actually did file that A case, and now 6 months later she wants to bring that A 

 
1 See Transcript, Jan. 14, 2020, 24:21-25:12 
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case into the guardianship case. Kimberly chose to take these steps, and she should not be 

permitted now to revise those multiple choices and choose an alternative path. 

 Finally, this Court does not have a courtroom sufficiently large or equipped to handle a 

jury trial, which could result in significant delay for the A case.  

 Kimberly would have the Court believe the guardianship case and A case are essentially 

identical and can easily be consolidated with significant savings in time and money, but that is 

not true. In the end, Kimberly’s Motion appears to amount to nothing more than forum shopping 

and should be denied. 

Statement of Facts. 

 As the Court can decipher from the claims and counterclaims in the A case, its focus 

and the individuals involved are quite different from the guardianship case. It involves claims 

based on events that occurred before the guardianship and individuals who are not parties to the 

guardianship case.  

Many of the alleged facts Kimberly includes in her Motion are incorrect. Here are some 

corrections of the misstatements pertinent to this Motion. 

• According to Kimberly, the defendants in the A case (“Defendants”) stalled for over 

three months. In reality, the court’s order denying the Defendants’ motion to dismiss 

was entered on June 22, 2020, and the Defendants filed their answer and counterclaims 

the same day. Any delay in the entry of the order was not due to Gerry’s delay but to the 

court and/or opposing counsel, possibly due to COVID-19. 

• Kimberly states the Defendants’ counterclaim for abuse of process alleges that “the 

guardianship was ‘blatantly false.’” In reality, the abuse-of-process claim focuses on 

Kimberly’s abusive actions, extend beyond the guardianship case, never claim the 

guardianship Court’s actions were abusive, and never claim the guardianship case was 
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“blatantly false” (whatever that might mean). The claim alleges that “Kimberly abused 

process by repeatedly making blatantly false statements in multiple pleadings in the 

POA Case, the Eviction Case, and the Guardianship Case.”2 The Defendants also allege 

Kimberly abused process by filing two lis pendens improperly.3  

• Kimberly uses words like “unwarranted,” “frivolous,” “haphazard,” and “deficient” to 

describe the Defendants’ counterclaims, but they are anything but frivolous. Indeed, 

Kimberly did not even attempt to file a motion to dismiss the counterclaims because 

they easily survive that threshold. The counterclaims are moving forward to discovery 

and eventually for the judge or jury to determine their validity, just like the guardian’s 

claims which are far from proven.  

• Kimberly states the Defendants’ counterclaims are against June’s guardian, which is 

misleading. One counterclaim is against Kimberly as June’s guardian (quiet title), but 

all the third-party claims are against Kimberly as an individual (not as guardian) and her 

boyfriend Dean Loggans.  

• Kimberly says “both cases involve parties who have appeared in the guardianship case, 

namely, Rodney Yeoman, Richard Powell, and Kandi Powell.”4 This statement is 

clearly wrong as the Powells have never appeared in the guardianship case. In reality, 

the A case involves four parties who are not parties to the guardianship case—Kimberly 

as an individual, Dean Loggans, Dick Powell, and Kandi Powell. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 Ex. 2, at 9, ¶ 46. 
3 Id. at ¶¶ 44-45. 
4 Mot., at 4:19-21. 
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Legal Standards. 
 
 NRCP 42(a) allows the Court, if it chooses, to consolidate actions if they “involve a 

common question of law or fact.” The Court has “broad, but not unfettered, discretion in 

ordering consolidation.” Nalder v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court in & for Cty. of Clark, 136 Nev. 

Adv. Op. 24, 462 P.3d 677, 684 (2020).  

This Court May Not Have Jurisdiction to Resolve the Claims in the A Case. 

One of the central questions in the A case is whether June had mental capacity when she 

chose to sell the Kraft House to Dick and Kandi Powell. As Kimberly argues in the Motion, 

“[t]he entire point” of the A case was to obtain relief for civil wrongs June allegedly suffered 

“while she lacked mental capacity.”5 However, this Court has specifically stated it doesn’t have 

jurisdiction to determine whether June was competent at the time of the sale of the Kraft House: 

I don’t even know that that falls under the guardianship, my jurisdiction to make 
a determination if she was competent at that time to make those transactions. So 
that certainly never came out of my mouth, and that certainly was not a part of 
what I asked the investigators to take a look at. *** I have no jurisdiction to do 
that.6 

 
Although family division courts have authority to address other matters related to cases 

within its jurisdiction, it should only do so in rare situations and this is not one of those situations. 

The family court division has exclusive jurisdiction of guardianship matters, see Matter of 

Guardianship of T.T.H., 421 P.3d 282 (Nev. 2018). Addressing other matters related to cases 

within its jurisdiction should be an exception, not the norm. For instance, in Landreth v. Malik, 

the Nevada Supreme Court determined the family division can “preside over a case improperly 

filed or assigned to the family court division,” 127 Nev. 175, 186, 251 P.3d 163, 170 (2011), but 

it noted that this occurrence would be rare:  

 
5 Mot. 4:34-27. 
6 Transcript, Jan. 14, 2020, 24:21-25:12 
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This issue is not likely to arise often because local rules serve to prevent litigants 
from purposefully filing in family court when their claims have no arguable 
relation to the proceedings set forth in NRS 3.223. See EDCR 1.60(h); WDFCR 
37. Additionally, the chief judge has the authority to reassign cases incorrectly 
filed in the family court division to a more appropriate venue. See EDCR 
1.60; see also WDCR 2; NRS 3.025. 

 
Id. at n.6 (see also Gianelloni, Charles, “Summary of Landreth v. Malik, 127 Nev. Adv. Op. No. 

16” (2011). Nevada Supreme Court Summaries. Paper 270. 

http://scholars.law.unlv.edu/nvscs/270 (“the majority was quick to note that this would be rare – 

only in situations where a case was mis-assigned to family court would this likely occur”). 

 The guardianship law contemplates that certain actions related to guardianship should 

still be filed in a separate civil court. NRS 159.095 instructs guardians to represent a protected 

person in all actions to which the protected person is a party and requires the guardian to notify 

the guardianship court of the final resolution. That statute does not require all such actions to be 

consolidated into the guardianship action. Also, NRS 159.111(1) allows a claimant to file a 

petition for approval of a rejected claim against the protected person in the guardianship court or 

commence a separate action or suit on the rejected claim. These procedures and requirements 

would not make sense if a guardian were able to consolidate a regular civil case with a 

guardianship case. Further, this matter is not a rare case in which consolidation is appropriate or 

makes sense. 

Consolidating the Cases Will Not Save Time or Money Because No Redundancy Exists. 

 There is little to no redundancy or duplication between the two cases that would result in 

a savings of time or money, and Kimberly has not identified any. Kimberly argues the A case 

focuses on June and is based on the same set of facts. While June is clearly the focus of the 

guardianship case and her interests are a central part of the A case, only one counterclaim in the 

A case is against Kimberly as guardian of the estate (quiet title). All the other counterclaims are 
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against Kimberly and Dean as individuals, and two of the counterclaimants are Dick and Kandi 

who are not parties to the guardianship.  

 Most of the claims in the A case, and the events arising from them, are not directly related 

to the guardianship case. In contrast to the guardianship case, which focuses on June’s welfare 

from the time the petition for guardianship was filed, the claims and counterclaims in the A case 

focus on some events that occurred long before the petition for guardianship. For instance, the 

sale of the Kraft House occurred about 20 months before the guardianship case began.  

 The A case focuses on issues about which this Court has not received evidence or made 

factual determinations. For instance, the Court has not received evidence regarding Kimberly’s 

alleged powers of attorney and has not received evidence or made a determination regarding the 

sale of the Kraft House. The investigator’s report played no role in the Court’s decision because 

it was filed long after Kimberly became guardian. The counterclaims focus on other facts about 

which this Court has made no determination, such as June’s kidnapping, Gerry’s loss of 

companionship with his wife June, and the actions of Kimberly and Dean in regard to the Kraft 

House. While all of these events are related to some degree, the guardianship court has not 

addressed them and, thus, there would be little to no benefit in savings of time or money from 

consolidation.  

 Contrary to Kimberly’s assertion, consolidation will not avoid redundant motions 

because there is little to no overlap between the cases. The major decisions in the guardianship 

case have been decided—all that remains is the ongoing administration of the guardianship. In 

contrast, the A case is just beginning. As a result, there will be few, if any, redundant motions 

between the two cases because their aims and posture are different, and nothing new has occurred 

since Kimberly chose to file the A case that would change this fact. 

Consolidation also would not save any time or money in regard to discovery because no 

discovery has occurred in the guardianship case, and the Court did not hold an evidentiary 
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hearing. Although the parties have shared a few documents with each other and the investigator 

in the guardianship case, those are only the tip of the iceberg as to what testimony and evidence 

will be involved in the A case, as evidenced by the guardian’s initial production of more than 

2,300 documents in the A case, almost none of which have been disclosed in connection with 

the guardianship. Moreover, as the Court has said, “[w]orking with the investigator to give her 

documents isn’t discovery” and her report to the Court is “not recommendations to me” and “I 

don’t adopt her factual findings.”7 In other words, very little actual, verifiable evidence exists as 

a result of the guardianship case; thus, discovery in the A case will duplicate little to nothing in 

the guardianship case. 

Kimberly argues that consolidation is necessary because one of her claims involves a 

guardianship statute, but her other claims involve non-guardianship statues and it was her choice 

to seek redress through the A case rather than through this Court.  

Consolidation of these two cases will likely result in little to no savings in time or money. 

Several Other Factors Weigh Against Consolidation. 

 The parties and issues in the two cases are different. Contrary to Kimberly’s assertion, 

Dick and Kandi Powell are not parties to the guardianship case. In addition, Dean Loggans and 

Kimberly (as an individual) are parties to the A case but not the guardianship case. Kimberly 

also argues that with the counterclaims in the A case Gerry, Dick, and Kandi are attempting to 

relitigate issues from the guardianship case. As described above, this argument fails because 

none of the issues in the A case have been litigated. This Court has made no findings of fact or 

conclusions of law regarding ownership of the Kraft House, June’s kidnapping, Kimberly and 

Dean’s legal right to occupy the Kraft House and their destruction of June and Gerry’s marital 

 
7 January 14, 2020 transcript 8:21 to 10:2. 
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relationship, or whether Kimberly has abused the legal process in this case or others. If it had, 

then there would likely be no need for the A case. 

 Kimberly also argues the counterclaims are a “collateral attack on this Court’s prior 

decisions,” which is anything but true. The counterclaims have nothing to do with this Court’s 

actions and everything to do with Kimberly’s and Dean’s harmful actions against Gerry, Dick, 

and Kandi, almost all of which occurred prior to the guardianship even being filed. For instance, 

they forcefully took June from Gerry without any legal authority and impeded their marital 

relationship. They interfered with the legal and valid sale of the Kraft House done with June’s 

informed consent and occupied the house against the owners’ wishes. The abuse-of-process 

claim alleges that Kimberly improperly issued a lis pendens in this case and in the other case 

involving powers of attorney and alleges she has made false statements in this case and others. 

The counterclaims focus on Kimberly and Dean and how their improper actions have harmed 

the Defendants. 

Kimberly argues that the counsel in both cases are the same, which is true now, but, 

presumably, Dean Loggans will have his own counsel as Marquis Aurbach Coffing appears not 

to be representing him in the A case. 

Finally, two practical considerations make consolidation difficult, if not impossible. 

First, this Court’s courtroom is not sufficiently large or equipped to handle a jury trial, which 

could result in significant delay to the A case. Second, this Court has special jurisdiction over 

guardianship cases with expertise in this area, and given its large docket of these cases it may 

not make sense for the Court to expend its resources on an A case.  

/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
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Conclusion. 
 
 Kimberly would have the Court believe the guardianship case and A case are essentially 

identical and can easily be consolidated with significant savings in time and money, but that is 

not true. The parties and issues in the two cases are different and little to nothing from the 

guardianship case would aid in completing the A case. In the end, Kimberly’s Motion appears 

to amount to nothing more than forum shopping and should be denied. 

Dated this 13th day of July, 2020.   
 

GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM 
 
 

       /s/ Laura A. Deeter                      
       Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
       Nevada Bar No. 10562 
       725 S. 8th Street, Suite 100 
       Las Vegas, NV 89101 
       Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

That on the 13th day of July, 2020, I deposited in the Post Office at Las Vegas, Nevada, 

a copy of the within OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE, enclosed in a sealed 

envelope, upon which postage was fully prepaid, and addressed as follows, and pursuant to 

EDCR 8.05(a) and 8.05(f) and Rule 9 of N.E.F.C.R, caused an electronic copy to be served via 

Odyssey to the email addresses noted below: 

Via Electronic Service 
Ty E. Kehoe, Esq.  
Kehoe & Associates 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, NV 89052 
tykehoelaw@gmail.com 
Co-Counsel for Rodney Gerald 
Yeoman 

Via Electronic Service 
Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.  
Piccolo Law Offices  
2450 St. Rose Pkwy, Suite 210 
Henderson, NV 89074 
matt@piccololawoffices.com 
Co-Counsel for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 

Via Electronic Service 
Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq. 
Legal Aid Center of  
Southern Nevada, Inc. 
725 E. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89104 
mparra@lacsn.org  
Attorney for Protected Person 

Via Electronic Service  
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.  
Marquis Aurbach Coffing 
10001 Park Run Drive 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 
gtomich@maclaw.com 
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones 

Via Electronic Service  
James Beckstrom, Esq.  
Marquis Aurbach Coffing 
10001 Park Run Drive 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com 
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones 

Via Electronic Service  
Ross E. Evans, Esq.  
Solomon Dwiggins & Freer, LTD 
9060 West Cheyenne Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89129 
revans@sdfnvlaw.com 
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones 

Via Electronic Service  
Jeffrey P. Luszeck, Esq. 
Solomon Dwiggins & Freer, LTD 
9060 West Cheyenne Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89129 
jluszeck@sdfnvlaw.com 
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones 

Via Electronic Service  
John P. Michaelson, Esq.  
Michaelson & Associates, LTD. 
2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 160 
Henderson, NV 89052 
john@michaelsonlaw.com 
Attorneys for Robyn Friedman 
and Donna Simmons 
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Via Electronic Service  
Jeffrey R. Sylvester, Esq.  
Sylvester & Polednak, LTD. 
1731 Village Center Circle 
Las Vegas, NV 89134 
jeff@sylvesterpolednak.com 
Attorneys for Robyn Friedman 
and Donna Simmons 
 

Via First Class Mail 
Teri Butler 
586 N. Magdelena St. 
Dewey, AZ 86327  
 

Via First Class Mail 
Scott Simmons 
1054 S. Verde St. 
Anaheim, CA 92805 
 

Via First Class Mail 
Jen Adamo 
14 Edgewater Dr. 
Magnolia, DE 19962 
 

Via First Class Mail 
Jon Criss 
804 Harksness Ln., Unit 3 
Redondo Beach, CA 90278 
 

Via First Class Mail 
Ryan O’Neal 
112 Malvern Ave., Apt. E 
Fullerton, CA 92832 

Via First Class Mail 
Tiffany O’Neal 
177 N. Singingwood St., Unit 13 
Orange, Ca 92869 
 

Via First Class Mail 
Cortney Simmons 
765 Kimbark Ave. 
San Bernardino, CA 92407 
 

Via First Class Mail 
Ampersand Man 
c/o Robyn Friedman 
2824 High Sail Ct. 
Las Vegas, NV 89117 
 

Via First Class Mail 
Director Dept. of Health  
and Human Srvc. 
4126 Technology Way, 100 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 

Via Electronic Service  
Sonia Jones,  
Guardianship Financial Forensic 
Specialist 
Guardianship Compliance Office 
Supreme Court of Nevada 
408 E. Clark Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
sjones@nvcourts.nv.gov 
 

 

 

/s/ Faydra Ross 
______________________________________ 

      An employee of Ghandi Deeter Blackham 
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